THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INSTRUCTION FORM ARE IMPORTANT AND REQUIRE YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt about the contents of this document, or the action you should take, you are recommended to seek your own personal financial advice immediately from your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent financial adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as amended) ("FSMA") if you are resident in the United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all of your Existing Ordinary Shares, please send this document and the Instruction Form as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for onward transmission to the purchaser or transferee. If you have sold or otherwise transferred only part of your holding of Existing Ordinary Shares, please retain the documents and consult the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transferred was effected as to the action you should take.

The distribution of this document and/or any accompanying documents into a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom may be restricted by law or regulation and therefore such documents should not be distributed, forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States of America, Canada, Australia, Japan, the Republic of Ireland, the Republic of South Africa, New Zealand, Cayman Islands, Barbados, Switzerland, the State of Kuwait or Singapore in or into any other jurisdiction where the extension of the Rights Issue would breach any applicable law or regulation. If you have sold or transferred part of your holding of Existing Ordinary Shares, you are advised to consult your stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected and refer to the instructions set out in the accompanying Instruction Form.

This document, which comprises a prospectus (the "**Prospectus**") dated 8 April 2025 issued by Navigator Trading Limited (the "**Company**"), has been prepared as a UK Growth Prospectus in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation and has been approved by, and filed with, the Financial Conduct Authority ("**FCA**") of 12 Endeavour Square, London E20 1JN (tel. no. 020 7066 1000) as competent authority under the Prospectus Regulation. The FCA only approves this document as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the Prospectus Regulation. Such approval should not be considered as an endorsement of the quality of the securities that are the subject of this prospectus or an endorsement of the issuer that is the subject of this prospectus. Investors should make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the securities. This Prospectus has been drawn up as a UK Growth Prospectus in accordance with Article 15 of the Prospectus Regulation. The Company is not authorised by the FCA or any other regulatory authority.

The Company and its Directors, whose names appear on pages 21 and 22 of this document, accept responsibility for the information contained in the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of the Company and its Directors the information contained in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and the Prospectus makes no omission likely to affect its import.

NAVIGATOR TRADING LIMITED

(Incorporated and registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006 with registered number 08202073)

Rights Issue of Ordinary Shares on a two for one basis at the Issue Price

The terms and conditions of the Rights Issue are set out on pages 39 to 44 of this document. The Rights Issue is not underwritten.

The Rights Issue Shares will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933 (as amended) or under the securities laws of any state of the United States or qualify for distribution under any of the relevant securities laws of Canada, Australia, the Republic of South Africa, or Japan. Accordingly, subject to certain exceptions, the Rights Issue Shares may not be, directly or indirectly, offered, sold, taken up, delivered or transferred in or into the United States of America, Canada, Australia, Japan, the Republic of

Ireland, the Republic of South Africa, New Zealand, Cayman Islands, Barbados, Switzerland, the State of Kuwait or Singapore. Shareholders who are residents or citizens of any country other than the United Kingdom and any person (including, without limitation, custodians, nominees and trustees) who have a contractual or other legal obligation to forward this document to a jurisdiction outside the United Kingdom should seek appropriate advice before taking any action.

Triple Point Investment Management LLP ("**TPIM**"), which is authorised and regulated by the FCA, is acting as promoter in connection with the Rights Issue. TPIM is acting exclusively for the Company and is not advising any other person or treating any other person as a customer or client in relation to the Rights Issue nor, subject to the responsibilities and liabilities imposed by FSMA or the regulatory regime thereunder, will it be responsible to any such person for providing the protections afforded to its respective customers or clients or for providing advice in connection with the Rights Issue.

Copies of this document will be available free of charge to the public during normal business hours on any day (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the offices of Triple Point Investment Management LLP at 1 King William Street, London, EC4N 7AF, UK for a period of 3 months from the date of this Prospectus.

Your attention is drawn to the risk factors set out on pages 11 to 15 of this document. An investment in the Company is only suitable for Investors who can evaluate the risks and merits of such an investment and who have sufficient resources to bear any loss which might arise.

The information contained in this Prospectus will be updated if required by the Prospectus Rules.

| CONTENTS | |
|---|----|
| Expected Timetable of Principal Events | 4 |
| Rights Issue Statistics | 4 |
| Summary | 5 |
| Risk Factors | 11 |
| Forward Looking Statements | 16 |
| Part 1 – Letter from the Board of Navigator Trading Limited | 17 |
| Part 2 – Information on the Company | 21 |
| Part 3 – Taxation | 25 |
| Part 4 – Financial Information on the Company | 28 |
| Part 5 – Definitions | 31 |
| Part 6 – General Information on the Company | 33 |
| Part 7 – Terms and Conditions of the Rights Issue | 39 |
| Directors and Advisers | 45 |

EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

| Record Date for the Rights Issue | 5 p.m. on 7 April 2025 |
|--|------------------------|
| Publication of the Prospectus and announcement of the Rights Issue | 8 April 2025 |
| Posting of the Instruction Form | 11 April 2025 |
| Latest time and date for acceptance of the Rights Issue and receipt of completed Instruction Forms and payment in full under the Rights Issue | 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025 |
| Issue of the Rights Issue Shares | June 2025 |

The Company reserves the right to revise the times and dates in the above timetable, which will be notified to Shareholders.

All references are to London time unless stated otherwise.

RIGHTS ISSUE STATISTICS

| Number of Rights Issue Shares | up to 671,683,104 |
|--|--|
| Issue Price | £1.699114 |
| Basis of Rights Issue Offer | 2 Rights Issue Shares for every 1 Existing Ordinary Share |
| Gross proceeds from the Rights Issue* | £1,141,266,000 |
| Net proceeds from the Rights Issue* | £1,118,441,000 |
| Enlarged Share Capital following the Rights Issue* | £10,075,246 |
| Rights Issue Shares as a percentage of the Enlarged Share Capital* | 66.67% |

*on the assumption that the Rights Issue is fully taken up at the Issue Price of £1.699114 per Rights Issue Share

SUMMARY

| SECTION 1 | INTRODUCTION | |
|------------------|--|--|
| Item | | |
| 1.1 | The Company's name is Navigator Trading Limited. The international securities identification number of the Company's ordinary shares is GB00BMXNP608. | |
| 1.2 | The Company's contact details are: | |
| | Address: 1 King William Street, London, United Kingdom, EC4N 7AF | |
| | Telephone no: 020 7201 8990 | |
| | The Company has a legal entity identifier which is 213800JNYFDXOBPVP584. | |
| 1.3 | This Prospectus has been approved by the FCA of 12 Endeavour Square, London, EC20 1JN. | |
| 1.4 | This Prospectus was approved by the FCA on 8 April 2025. | |
| 1.5 | This summary should be read as an introduction to the Prospectus. Any decision to invest in the securities of the Company should be based on consideration of the Prospectus as a whole by the Investor. An Investor could lose all or part of the invested capital. Civil liability attaches to those persons who have tabled the Summary, but only if the Summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of the Prospectus or it does not provide, when read together with the other pospectus, key information in order to aid Investors when considering whether to invest in the securities of the Company. | |
| SECTION 2 | Key Information on the Issuer | |
| ltem | | |
| 2.1 | Navigator Trading Limited is the issuer of the Rights Issue Shares. | |
| 2.1.1 | The Company is a private limited company, which is incorporated and registered in England an Wales with registered number 08202073. | |
| | The principal legislation under which the Issuer operates is the Companies Act 2006, and the regulations made thereunder. | |
| | The Company is a trading company that trades through partnerships in which it is interested ("Partnerships"). Funds raised by the Company are deployed, by way of capital contribution, into the Partnerships, which themselves provide funding to a large and diverse range of small and medium sized enterprises in the following areas: | |
| | • Specialty Finance . This includes the provision of wholesale credit lines to specialty finance providers who then on-lend to end borrowers which are typically small businesses taking direct short-term loans. Small and medium-sized enterprises ("SMEs") use these loans as a supplement or replacement for an overdraft facility or traditional bank finance, and many will use their facilities to expand commercial capabilities or to purchase stock. This also includes provision of wholesale credit lines to specialist property lenders who assess and originate property bridging loans. Loans are normally provided at an advance rate to a lender who will onward lend at a typical maximum 75% loan to value secured by underlying properties. Specialty Finance also includes funds finance lending facilities to established funds to assist with growth and liquidity, again secured on a pool of assets at conservative loan to values or legally contracted commitments from high quality counterparties. | |
| | • SME Debt Finance. Provision of capital for SMEs who need finance for growth, acquisition, or existing shareholder buyout. Lending is to established, cash flow- | |

| | generative and profitable business | | |
|-------------|---|---|--|
| | generative and profitable businesses. | | |
| | • Property Development. In this business segment loans are provided for development of residential and commercial property. All loans have strong security over the underlying property and prudent loan-to-value ratios. | | |
| | Corporate. Provision of leasing and loan finance facilities to support the actingible assets, intangible assets, or provide direct finance for working capital by Corporates which are defined as having one of the following: turnover grafted from the sheet greater than £40m, or greater than 250 employees. | | |
| | Infrastructure Finance. Financing alone basis (without guarantees or or group), using the cash flows gen | financial support from the | borrower's parent company |
| | The Company has no controlling sharehold | er. | |
| | The Company has 5 non-executive director | rs ("Directors"). | |
| 2.2 / 2.2.1 | / 2.2.1 The following financial information summaries for the years ended on 31 March 2023 and March 2024 have been extracted, without any material adjustment, from the Company's audi financial statements for those periods. | | |
| | Extracted financial information for the Company for the year ended | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 |
| | | £000 | £000 |
| | Total Revenue | 16,417 | 22,077 |
| | Operating Profit | 14,389 | 20,231 |
| | Net Profit | 11,310 | 14,483 |
| | From 31 March 2024, up to 28 February 2 capital through share subscriptions. For the the Company had generated profits of £17.3 has risen from £468 million at 31 March 20 (unaudited). | e 11 months from 31 Marc 3 million. The net asset va | h 2024 to 28 February 2025 lue ("NAV") of the Company |
| | The underlying portfolio of loans held by the Partnerships, into which the Company has deployed its capital, have experienced a period where default rates and bad debt provisions have needed attention given a challenging economic environment; however, bad debt rates are now in line wite expectations. The annualised loss rate has increased to 0.6% which is considered reasonable for a portfolio of this nature however this is 0.1% up on prior year and is expected to reduce back to c0.5% over the next 12-24 months with the anticipation of improving economic conditions. Shoul these not materialise, it is reasonable to expect the annualised loss rate to stay closer to 0.6-0.7% It is worth noting that despite this tick up in provisions, Company performance continues to mere expectations. As a result of the Partnerships making provisions the Company does not need to make provisions separately. These provisions are effectively reflected in the value of Company partnership contributions, those contributions being the aggregate of capital provided, an retained profit share less accrued provisions. With provisions made in the trading partnership the 12 month rolling return at 28 February 2025 was 4.01%. Save as set out above, there has been no other significant change in the financial position of the Company which has occurred since 31 March 2024, being the end of the last financial period for which audited financial statements have been published, to the date of this Prospectus. | | |
| | There were no qualifications in the auditors' | report on the Company's a | accounts for the years ended |

| | 31 March 2023 or 31 March 2024. | | |
|-----|--|----------------|---------------|
| | Balance Sheet | | |
| | Extracted financial information for the Company as at the relevant year end | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 |
| | | £000 | £000 |
| | Fixed Assets | 375,808 | 468,085 |
| | Current Assets | 505 | 58 |
| | Creditors | 1,863 | 268 |
| | Net current liabilities | 1,357 | 210 |
| | Total assets less current liabilities | 374,450 | 467,875 |
| | Cash | Flow Statement | |
| | Extracted financial information for the Company for the year ended | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 |
| | | £000 | £000 |
| | Net cash used in operating activities | -4,344 | 9,188 |
| | Net cash used in investing activities | -88,247 | -70,201 |
| | Net cash from financing activities | 93,068 | 78,942 |
| 2.3 | As the Company trades through its membership of the Partnerships, the risks associated with the Partnerships are the most material risk factors specific to the Company as those risks affect the returns it makes, and those risks are as follows: Whilst the constitution of each Partnership permits full distribution of net profits to partners, including the Company, the Company has historically elected not to receive the accrued profits to which it is entitled and instead such profits are retained by each such Partnership and deployed in accordance with their business strategy. The Company is entitled to request a distribution of accrued current account balances from each such Partnership on 15 days' notice. However, in the event of an insolvency of any of the Partnerships the amounts available for distribution by that Partnership to the Company may be significantly reduced or curtailed entirely and this could significantly affect the returns to the Company. The Partnership's customers may be unable or unwilling to meet their obligations to the Partnerships. The Partnerships' customers may also be affected by competition, interest | | |
| | rates, inflation, labour market pressures, and other macroeconomic factors, including commodity prices and foreign exchange, which may adversely affect their performance and profitability and their ability to meet their obligations to the Partnerships and which in turn may adversely affect the profitability of the Company. There's a growing risk that inflation fears will force the Bank of England to stop cutting rates. Equally, though, the recent sharp deterioration in measures of job growth have raised the likelihood of underlying price pressures eventually fading markedly. Balancing these risks, it is anticipated that the Bank of England will continue to cut interest rates gradually. In a declining interest rate environment, the competition between lenders may be increased as liquidity increases, or variable rate lenders become more attractive. This can potentially put pressure on the interest rate on which the Partnerships lends and | | |

| | therefore equild negatively increative setures | |
|------------------|---|--|
| | therefore could negatively impact investor returns. | |
| | • Loans may be made to counterparties by the Partnerships who may default on such loans and the value of any security taken by the Partnerships to secure such loans may reduce in value. Should such counterparties default in repaying such loans, the full amount of the loans made may not be repaid, which could adversely affect the value of the Partnerships' investments and, consequentially, the value of the Company's investment in the Partnerships. | |
| | • The interruption and/or limitation in the supply of certain natural resources (such as oil and gas), as a result of hostilities around the world, may adversely affect the Partnerships' customers' ability to meet their obligations which could significantly affect the returns to the Company. | |
| | • The Partnerships currently make specific and general provisions for bad debts. If the level of bad debts exceeded these provisions this would impact the Company's profitability and, if there was a significant increase in the rate of bad debts above the provisions, it could ultimately have an adverse effect on the Company's prospects and performance. | |
| | • Whilst the Partnerships take security over the assets of some of the entities which they lend to or fund, which may reduce the risk of loss, the Partnerships do not take security in respect of all entities. The lack of security may mean that other creditors have a preference over the Partnerships to the underlying assets of those entities, and that a greater loss may be incurred by the Partnerships as secured and preferential creditors are repaid before unsecured creditors, which may adversely affect the returns to the Company. | |
| | If the Company is not adequately funded, it cannot further capitalise the Partnerships, which cannot then lend to as many customers. Failure to originate and execute transactions may have a material adverse effect on the Partnerships, as they will not be able to deploy their funds into lending opportunities and will, therefore, adversely affect the financial performance of the Partnerships, and hence the Company. | |
| SECTION 3 | KEY INFORMATION ON THE SECURITIES | |
| Item | | |
| 3.1.1 | The shares offered under the rights issue (the "Rights Issue") set out in this Prospectus are ordinary shares of 1 penny each ("Rights Issue Shares"). | |
| | The currency of the Rights Issue Shares is Sterling. | |
| | Under the Rights Issue, assuming full subscription, up to a maximum of 671,683,104 Rights Issue Shares in the Company will be issued and gross proceeds will be up to £1,141,266,000. | |
| | The Rights Issue Shares will rank pari passu (equally) with the Company's existing ordinary shares ("Existing Ordinary Shares") and will, therefore, have the following rights: | |
| | • The Existing Ordinary Shares have full voting, dividend and capital distribution (including on winding up) rights. The Existing Ordinary Shares are not redeemable. | |
| | • The Existing Ordinary Shares and the Company's A ordinary shares are the only share classes in existence in the Company and the Rights Issue Shares will not be subordinate to or senior to any other class of shares in the Company (including on insolvency). | |
| | The Directors have no current intention to pay any dividends. | |
| 3.2 | The Rights Issue Shares will not be admitted to trading on a regulated market, nor will they be subject to an application for admission to trading on an MTF or an SME Growth Market. | |

| 3.3 | There is no guarantee attached to the Rights Issue Shares, or any other shares in the Company. |
|-----------|---|
| 3.4 | The key risks specific to the Rights Issue Shares are as follows: |
| | Any changes or differing interpretations in current legislation, rules and published practice in force as at the date of this Prospectus could result in the Rights Issue Shares ceasing to qualify for Business Relief as set out in the Inheritance Tax Act 1984. If Business Relief is not available in respect of the Rights Issue Shares, they will form part of an investor's estate and be subject to inheritance tax on death. |
| | The Rights Issue Shares are unquoted and there are no current plans to apply for a quotation or listing of the Rights Issue Shares. Accordingly, the Rights Issue Shares are an illiquid investment, and investors may not be able to dispose of their Rights Issue Shares at full value or at all or within any targeted timeframe. |
| | The Financial Services Compensation Scheme ("FSCS") deposit protection does not apply to the Rights Issue Shares so neither the FSCS nor anyone else will pay compensation to investors in the event of a failure. |
| SECTION 4 | KEY INFORMATION ON THE OFFER OF SECURITIES TO THE PUBLIC |
| Item | |
| 4.1 | The Rights Issue will offer all holders of Existing Ordinary Shares ("Shareholders") the right to purchase two Rights Issue Shares for each Existing Ordinary Share they hold. Rights will not be transferable, so if they are not exercised by that Shareholder they will lapse. Assuming full subscription, the number of Rights Issue Shares that will be issued under the Rights Issue will represent 66.67% of the Existing Ordinary Shares and the Existing Ordinary Shares will represent 33.33% of the Ordinary Shares immediately following completion of the Rights Issue. Any Shareholder who does not or cannot take up any of their rights will therefore suffer a dilution of up to 66.67% of ownership in the Company, assuming full subscription. |
| | Triple Point Investment Management LLP ("TPIM"), the Company's corporate services provider, will receive from the Company an initial charge of 2% of the gross amount subscribed under the Rights Issue (the "Initial Charge"). The Initial Charge is effectively charged by the Company to those investors taking up their rights through the calculation of the issue price ("Issue Price"), which is based on the Company's latest (unaudited) NAV per Existing Ordinary Share on 28 February 2025 (£1.665132) grossed up by the Initial Charge of 2%. The Initial Charge is not additional to the Issue Price. |
| | A dealing in charge is payable by an investor, not the Company, directly to TPIM, as promoter of the Rights Issue, upon subscribing for Rights Issue Shares, in an amount equal to 1% of the amount subscribed by an investor under the Rights Issue (the "Dealing in Charge"). |
| | The record date for eligibility to participate in the Rights Issue is 5p.m. on 7 April 2025 (the "Record Date"). The Rights Issue will be open for acceptance for Shareholders on the register of members of the Company at the Record Date between 8 April 2025 and 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025, being the latest time and date for acceptance of the Rights Issue and receipt of completed Instruction Forms and payment in full under the Rights Issue. |
| | The estimated costs of the Rights Issue are the aggregate of 2% of the gross amount subscribed for Right Issue Shares and £50,000 plus VAT, in respect of professional costs. |
| 4.2 | This UK Growth Prospectus is being produced as the Company intends to make an offer of shares to the public through the Rights Issue to take advantage of a pipeline of opportunities currently available to the Company in line with its strategy. |
| 4.2.1 | The Rights Issue is being made and its proceeds will be used to enable the Company to provide further capital to the Partnerships which, in turn, will enable them to exploit the strong pipeline of |

| | opportunities that they currently have available and in respect of new opportunities as they arise in the future, in line with the Company's overall strategy of trading through the Partnerships which focus on providing funding to a large and diverse range of SMEs. The types of debt finance provided to SMEs include specialty finance, SME debt finance, property development, corporate, and infrastructure finance. |
|-----|---|
| | Assuming full subscription, the Rights Issue will raise gross proceeds of up to £1,141,266,000, the estimated net proceeds of the Rights Issue will be £1,118,441,000 and the total expenses of the Rights Issue (including professional costs) will be £50,000. An Initial Charge of 2% is effectively charged to those investors taking up their rights through the calculation of the Issue Price, which is based on the latest (unaudited) NAV per Existing Ordinary Share on 28 February 2025 (£1.665132) grossed up by the Initial Charge. In addition, the Dealing in Charge is payable directly to TPIM, as promoter of the Rights Issue, by an investor (not the Company) upon subscribing for Rights Issue Shares. The Dealing in Charge is an amount equal to 1% of the amount subscribed by an investor under the Rights Issue. |
| | No entity is underwriting the offer of Rights Issue Shares. |
| | As well as being Directors of the Company, Michael Bayer is a partner of Triple Point LLP, which is itself a designated member of TPIM, Toby Furnivall is TPIM's Managing Director of Private Credit and Sean Brophy is TPIM's Chief Commercial Officer, Business Finance and they are, therefore, interested in certain contracts with the Company. Save for these interests, there are no material conflicts of interest pertaining to the offer of Rights Issue Shares. |
| 4.3 | The offeror of the Rights Issue Shares is the Company. |

Risk Factors

Investors should consider carefully the following risk factors in addition to the other information presented in the Prospectus. Before making any investment decision, prospective Investors should consider carefully the risks attached to investing in the Rights Issue together with all other information contained in this Prospectus, including, in particular, the risk factors described below. This information does not purport to be exhaustive. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company, or that the Company currently deems to be immaterial, may also have an adverse effect on the business of the Company. Investors should consider carefully whether an investment in the Company is appropriate for them in the light of the information in this document and their personal circumstances. The attention of prospective Investors is drawn to the following material risks:

Rights Issue Shares

- The levels and bases of reliefs from taxation may change and such changes could apply retrospectively. The tax reliefs referred to in this Prospectus are described in accordance with the Company's taxation adviser's interpretation of current legislation, rules and published practice in force as at the date of this Prospectus, which may change and affect the return to Investors. Any such changes or differing interpretations could result in the Shares ceasing to qualify for Business Relief. If Business Relief is not available in respect of the Shares, they will form part of an investor's estate and be subject to inheritance tax on death.
- The Shares are unquoted and there are no current plans to apply for a quotation or listing of the Shares. Accordingly, the Shares are an illiquid investment, and Investors may not be able to dispose of their Shares at full value or at all.
- The Financial Services Compensation Scheme ("FSCS") deposit protection does not apply to the Rights Issue Shares so neither the FSCS nor anyone else will pay compensation to Investors in the event of the failure.
- If an investor dies before their Shares are allotted, their subscription will have to be returned and will not receive relief from inheritance tax.

The Company

- As the Company trades through its membership of the Partnerships, the risks associated with the Partnerships are material risk factors specific to the Company as those risks affect the returns it makes.
- Whilst the constitution of each Partnership permits full distribution of net profits to partners, including the Company, the Company elects not to receive the accrued profits to which it is entitled and instead such profits are retained on the current account held for the Company by each such Partnership. The Company is entitled to request a distribution of accrued current account balances from each such Partnership on 15 days' notice. However, in the event of an insolvency of any of the Partnerships the amounts available for distribution of that Partnership's retained accrued profits to the Company may be reduced in part or in whole and this could significantly affect the returns to the Company.
- The Partnership's customers may be unable or unwilling to meet their obligations to the Partnerships. The Partnerships' customers may also be affected by competition, high interest rates, high rates of inflation, labour market pressures, and other macroeconomic factors, including commodity prices and foreign exchange, which may adversely affect their performance and profitability and their ability to meet their obligations to the Partnerships and which in turn may adversely affect the profitability of the Company.
- The Bank of England has been cutting interest rates when inflation is above the 2% target and is expected to rise further. There's a growing risk that inflation fears will force the Bank of England to stop cutting rates. Equally, though, the recent sharp deterioration in measures of job growth have raised the

likelihood of underlying price pressures eventually fading markedly.¹ Balancing these risks, it is anticipated that the Bank of England will continue to cut interest rates gradually. In a declining interest rate environment, the competition between lenders may be increased as liquidity increases, or variable rate lenders become more attractive. This can potentially put pressure on the interest rate on which the Partnerships lends and therefore could negatively impact investor returns.

- Loans may be made by the Partnerships to counterparties who may default on such loans and the value
 of any security taken by the Partnerships to secure such loans may reduce in value. Should such
 counterparties default in repaying such loans, the full amount of the loans made may not be repaid,
 which could adversely affect the value of the Partnerships' investments and, consequentially, the value
 of the Company's investment in the Partnerships.
- The interruption and/or limitation in the supply of certain natural resources (such as oil and gas), as a result of hostilities around the world, may adversely affect the Partnership's customers' ability to meet their obligations which could significantly affect the returns to the Company.
- The Partnerships currently make specific and general provisions for bad debts. If the level of bad debts exceeded these provisions this would impact the Company's profitability and, if there was a significant increase in the rate of bad debts above the provisions, it could ultimately have an adverse effect on the Company's prospects and performance.
- Whilst the Partnerships take security over the assets of some of the entities which they lend to or fund, which may reduce the risk of loss, the Partnerships do not take security in respect of all entities. The lack of security may mean that other creditors have a preference over the Partnerships to the underlying assets of those entities, and that a greater loss may be incurred by the Partnerships as secured and preferential creditors are repaid before unsecured creditors, which may adversely affect the returns to the Company
- If the Company is not adequately funded, it cannot further capitalise the Partnerships, which cannot then lend to as many customers. Failure to originate and execute transactions may have a material adverse effect on the Partnerships, as they will not be able to deploy their funds into lending opportunities and will, therefore, adversely affect the financial performance of the Partnerships, and hence the Company
- Competition in lending to SMEs can take many forms, including challenger banks, and other non-bank lenders. Competition may be affected by interest rates and fees charged for a loan, LTV thresholds, convenience in obtaining a loan (including where a loan is needed at short notice), customer service, lender reputation and the marketing and distribution channels. In addition, competitors may have developed or marketed alternative financial arrangements that are more effective or less susceptible to challenge than those developed or marketed by the Partnerships. These factors may render the Partnerships' business strategy less profitable, which could adversely affect the returns to the Company.
- The Partnerships' ability to successfully operate and grow their respective businesses is currently largely
 dependent on certain key individuals employed by Triple Point as service provider and on their business
 and financial skills, and the departure of those individuals may adversely affect the ability of the
 Partnerships to identify, source, select, complete, and monitor appropriate businesses which in turn
 could adversely affect the Company's profitability.
- The distribution policy of each Partnership in which the Company is interested will affect the returns to Investors, and any withholding of profits by the Partnerships will adversely affect the profitability of the Company and hence adversely affect the return to Investors.
- The Company relies on TPIM, as the Company's Corporate Services Provider, which provides a range of corporate services to the Company and the Partnerships through its highly experienced Private Credit, company secretarial and finance teams, including (amongst others) deal origination, client relationship management and portfolio monitoring and administration services. Furthermore, the Company relies on

¹ Capital Economics, 27 February 2025.

the technology that TPIM operates the administration of the portfolio on. Therefore, the Company is exposed to technology risk of a system failure resulting in repayments not being collected or incorrect balances being tracked in the system. TPIM is also the investment manager and equity shareholder of Triple Point Advancr Leasing plc ("TPALP") which provides investors access to an investment strategy aligned with that of the Partnerships. The strategy of the Company is to trade through interests in partnerships into which it makes capital contributions, these partnerships participate in funding opportunities to SMEs through various business-lines, namely speciality finance, SME debt finance, property development, corporate, and infrastructure finance. TPALP may be interested in possible lending opportunities to some of the same category of borrowers which the Partnerships, reducing the rate of funds deployed and thereby impacting on the Partnerships' revenue which in turn may adversely affect the Company's profitability.

- The Partnerships will be under a duty to comply with any new rules, regulations and laws applicable to their operations including, for example, additional duty of care requirements imposed on non-bank lenders and/or an extension to the Consumer Credit Act. Compliance with these rules, regulations and laws could create additional burdens for the Partnerships and could have a material adverse effect on their profitability, and hence the profit the Company is able to draw from the Partnerships.
- The Partnerships may be subject to privacy or data protection failures. The Partnerships are subject to regulation regarding the use of personal customer data. The Partnerships process sensitive personal customer data as part of their business and, therefore, must comply with strict data protection and privacy laws in the jurisdictions in which they operate. Whilst the Partnerships seek to ensure that procedures are in place to ensure compliance with the relevant data protection regulations, the Partnerships are exposed to the risk that these data could be wrongfully appropriated, lost or disclosed, or processed in breach of data protection regulation. If the Partnerships or any of the third party service providers on which they rely fails to store or transmit customer information and payment details online in a secure manner, or if any loss of personal customer data were otherwise to occur, the Partnerships could face liability under data protection laws which could have a material adverse effect on their business, financial condition and results of operations and the Company's profitability.
- The Partnerships may fail to detect the money laundering or fraudulent activities of borrowers. If the
 Partnerships fail to detect the money laundering or fraudulent activities the Partnerships could suffer
 financial or reputational loss or be in breach of its own legal and/or regulatory obligations, all, any or a
 combination of which could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results
 of operations as the Partnerships could be subject to sanctions or fines. Each of these factors could
 have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Partnerships, and hence the level of profit distribution
 the Company receives from the Partnerships.
- The Company, the Partnerships and TPIM may be vulnerable to cyber-crime attacks which could adversely affect the Company's business. These attacks may include distributed denial of service ("DDoS") attacks and other forms of cyber-crime, such as attempts by computer hackers to gain unauthorised access to the Partnerships' systems and databases for the purposes of manipulating results, misappropriation of funds or theft of data. Any such attacks may cause systems failure and/or business disruption and could have a material adverse effect on the Partnerships' business, financial condition and results of operations. Such attacks are by their nature technologically sophisticated and may be difficult or impossible to detect and defend against. If the Partnerships fail to implement adequate prevention measures or should any such prevention measures fail or be circumvented, the Partnerships' reputation and results of operations. Each of these factors could have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Partnerships, and hence the level of profit distribution the Company receives from the Partnerships.
- There may be a failure of the Partnerships' business continuity management and disaster recovery plans. The Partnerships seek to prevent significant business interruptions which may potentially cause

a disruption to their operations. Failure to respond adequately to such business interruptions may adversely affect the Partnerships' business and hence the level of profit distribution the Company receives from the Partnerships. Failure of the Partnerships' business continuity and disaster recovery plans may have material adverse effects on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Each of these factors could have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Partnerships, and hence the level of profit distribution the Company receives from the Partnerships.

- The Partnerships' intellectual property could be subject to infringement by third parties or claims of infringement of third parties' rights. The Partnerships regard their copyright, trademarks, domain names, trade secrets, customer databases and similar intellectual property as critical to their success and rely on confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements and other contractual provisions in order to protect their intellectual property. There can be no assurance that these efforts will be adequate, or that third parties will not infringe upon or misappropriate the Partnerships' proprietary rights, which may have a material and adverse effect on their business, financial condition and results of operations. Each of these factors could have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Partnerships, and hence the level of profit distribution the Company receives from the Partnerships.
- The Partnerships are subject to risks arising from potential litigation. Each of the Partnerships faces the general risk of potential litigation in connection with its business, its customers, its employees and its external service providers, suppliers and partners (including the effects of changes in the law, regulations, policies or their respective interpretations). Such actions may result in the Partnerships incurring considerable legal and other costs (including fines and penalties), diversion of management time and resources and disruption to the provision of services, in addition to damage to the Partnerships' reputation and brand image which may have a material adverse effect on their business, financial condition and results of operations whether or not the relevant actions are successful. Each of these factors could have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Partnerships, and hence the level of profit distribution the Company receives from the Partnerships.
- The Company relies on TPIM, the Company's Corporate Services Provider, which is the sole originator
 of lending opportunities for the Partnerships, and the Company is largely dependent on certain key
 individuals employed by TPIM's deal origination team. In the event that any of those key staff left TPIM
 or, for whatever reason, TPIM failed to continue originating opportunities, this could have an adverse
 effect on the profitability of the Partnerships, and hence the level of profit distribution the Company
 receives from the Partnerships.
- Any loss making activities undertaken by the Partnerships will negatively impact the performance of the Company.
- Were the Company to fail, for whatever reason, investors could lose all or part of their investment in the Company.

Taxation risk and changes in legislation

- Tax treatment depends on individual circumstances and an investment in the Company will not be suitable for all investors. Tax reliefs may be lost by investors taking, or not taking, certain steps or by changes in the tax regime. There can be no guarantee that the Company will maintain Business Relief qualifying status. The availability of Business Relief is assessed by HMRC on a case-by-case basis based on the circumstances at the time of death of the investor. If Business Relief is not available for whatever reason, the investment in the Company will form part of a Shareholder's estate for IHT purposes.
- The increase in Corporation Tax from 19% to 25% in April 2023 has increased the corporation tax that the Company must pay, thereby reducing the profits that can be returned to investors. Any further changes in the tax regime could have a detrimental impact on investor returns.
- A material change to inheritance tax or to Business Relief which resulted in Business Relief no longer being available on shares in the Company, could result in Shareholders wanting to have capital returned

to them and the Company running down the loan books to maximise the collection of loan principal and interest. This may result in the Company having to pass on attractive business opportunities and which could have a detrimental impact on investor returns.

Other risks

• The businesses with which the Partnerships deal are subject to economic risks. Whilst the Company plans for such events as far as possible to try and mitigate this risk (including, for example, by factoring potential interest rate changes into its business model) it is not possible to foresee what may occur. If there are adverse changes in the market or in the macro-economy beyond those factored into the Company's strategy and business model, this could have an adverse impact on the Company's performance or financial position causing the Company to generate less income than expected.

Forward Looking Statements

This document includes "forward-looking statements" which include all statements other than statements of historical facts, including, without limitation, those regarding the Company's financial position, business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations, or any statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words "targets", "believes", "expects", "aims", "intends", "will", "may", "anticipates", "would", "could" or "similar" expressions or negatives thereof. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors beyond the Company's control that could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding the Company's present and future business strategies and the environment in which the Company will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only as at the date of this document. The Company expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in the Company's expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statements are based unless required to do so by applicable law or regulation including any requirement to update such statements under the Prospectus Regulation Rules. These forward looking statements and any other forward looking statements in the Prospectus do not in any way seek to qualify the working capital statement set out in paragraph 9.1 of Part 6.

Dear Shareholder

Proposal to raise additional funds for the Company by way of a Rights Issue of New Ordinary Shares

We are writing with an update on the Company's business generally and to inform you of the Company's intention to raise additional funds to take advantage of the opportunities described below.

Rights Issue offer on the basis of 2 Rights Issue Shares being available for every 1 Existing Ordinary Share at the Issue Price

1. Introduction

Historically, when the opportunity has arisen, the Company has conducted a Rights Issue to raise additional funds to capitalise on particular opportunities to grow its business. Through the strong support and appetite of its Shareholders, to date the Company has raised some £83.9 million through rights issues. The net proceeds have been used to provide capital contributions to the Partnerships through which the Company trades, enabling those Partnerships to increase the provision of financing to the SME market. The Company now, through these Partnerships, has a significant pipeline of opportunities which it would like to capitalise on for Shareholders. Therefore, it has today launched a further rights issue to increase its capital base on the basis of 2 Rights Issue Shares being available for every 1 Existing Ordinary Share held on the Record Date, at the Issue Price of \pounds 1.699114 per Share.

The Rights Issue provides Qualifying Shareholders with an opportunity to participate in the proposed issue of new Ordinary Shares, providing the Company with additional capital to invest in its business and take advantage of the opportunities described below.

2. Current Trading Position

The Company is a mature company that trades through Partnerships, providing an alternative source of capital to a wide and diverse range of SMEs through specialty finance, SME debt finance, property development, corporate, and infrastructure finance.

The Company is trading well, delivering an increase in net asset value per Share from 31 March 2024 to 28 February 2025 of 4.05%, in line with targets, and over recent months has seen strong demand for its activities as a result of greater awareness of its proposition.

As set out in the annual results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company generated an operating profit of £20.2 million (2023: £14.4 million) and a post-tax profit of £14.5 million (2023: £11.3 million). From 31 March 2024, up to 31 December 2024, the Company raised £49.1 million of new capital through share subscriptions and made capital contributions of £48 million to the Partnerships.

The Company's Net Asset Value ("NAV") rose from £468 million at 31 March 2024 (audited) to £531 million as at 31 December 2024 (unaudited) and the Company's NAV per Share rose from £1.605250 on 31 March 2024 (audited) to £1.654733 per Share on 31 December 2024 (unaudited). Since 31 March 2024, to the date of this Prospectus the Company has continued to trade in line with Directors' expectations.

The underlying borrowers continue to perform and repay their funding as expected in the usual course of business. The Company expects a level of defaults to occur, given its focus on SME businesses, and contracts are priced accordingly. Whilst the portfolio has seen some losses over the last 3 years, these are within expected tolerances and losses have been absorbed by the provisions taken by the Partnerships. Provisioning levels are monitored by the Board on a monthly basis. The annualised loss rate has increased to 0.6% which is considered reasonable for a portfolio of this nature however this is 0.1% up on prior year and is expected to reduce back to c0.5% over the next 12-24 months with the anticipation of improving economic conditions. Should these not materialise, it is reasonable to expect the annualised loss rate to stay closer to 0.6-0.7%. It is worth noting that despite this tick up in provisions, Company performance continues to meet expectations. While adding to the level of provisions has reduced Shareholder returns the Company's annualised year to date return at 31 December 2024 was 4.06%, within the targeted return range for the business.

The Partnerships have increased their ability to source new lending and leasing opportunities and the net proceeds of the Rights Issue will be applied by way of further capital contributions to those Partnerships to exploit the strong pipeline of opportunities that they currently have.

As service provider to the Company, TPIM, has continued to invest in its infrastructure, systems and people to support the increased activity of the Company and Partnerships.

With this solid operational and financial position, the Company is writing to existing Shareholders to raise further capital. This initiative aims to take advantage of current opportunities, and new opportunities as they arise in the future, to both maintain and grow its business. The net proceeds of the Rights Issue will be strategically allocated to the Partnerships to exploit these funding opportunities for the benefit of Shareholders.

3. Reasons for the Rights Issue

The Company is performing well and is seeking additional capital at this time for various reasons.

• Strong Pipeline and Cash Flow Forecast Pinch Points. The Company has a solid pipeline of deals and its cash flow forecast (below) shows tight liquidity for the 2025/26 financial year with the pipeline liquidity facility (RCF) within one of its Partnerships being fully drawn. Without a material raise in a rights issue, the Company may have to pass on attractive business opportunities.

| Cash Flow Forecast 2025/26 | £ millions |
|--|------------|
| Forecast opening cash 1 April 2025 | 1.9 |
| Gross raise including rights issue | 137.1 |
| Redemptions | (45.1) |
| Net raise | 92.0 |
| Total deployment | (388.4) |
| Total repayments | 290.1 |
| Total costs + fees | (16.8) |
| RCF drawn | 32.0 |
| RCF fees + interest | (1.2) |
| Intercompany transfers | (7.5) |
| Forecast closing cash 31 March 2026 | 2.1 |

- **High Deployment Rates.** The Company has maintained an average deployment rate of 96% in the current financial year. One of the Company's Partnerships has used its RCF to manage intra-month pinch points and to execute on its pipeline.
- Strong Market Demand and Established Teams. The Company benefits from well-established lending teams operating in deep markets with clear demand for capital. These teams have developed strong reputations over the last 10-15 years, resulting in a consistent flow of new financing requirements.
- **Proven Track Record**. The Company has successfully executed several rounds of rights issues in the past. In March 2024, the Company raised £24.3m, which was almost entirely deployed by May 2024. This demonstrates its ability to execute successful rights issues and deploy the funds effectively.

- **Favourable Interest Rate Environment.** The current interest rate environment presents an opportunity for the Company to deploy capital at attractive rates. With the interest rate outlook suggesting that rates will take longer to fall, this window allows the Company to write meaningful levels of new business at prevailing rates, helping to deliver returns for investors over the coming years.
- **Strategic Growth Opportunities**. The Company has opportunities in energy infrastructure, debt, and asset ownership, as well as growing origination teams and regional presence. These opportunities, along with a larger introducer base, support the rationale for the Rights Issue.
- Economic and Political Tailwinds. Labour's focus on UK productive finance and housebuilding, together with the continued rise of non-bank lending in achieving some of labour's aims to stimulate the UK economy, provides additional support for the Company's decision to raise funds. A report in 2023 indicated that 40% of UK SMEs prefer non-bank lending services over mainstream banks (UK Finance, *Business Finance Review*, September 2023). According to a report in August 2024 by the Centre for Finance, Innovation and Technology, non-bank lending accounted for 60% of SME lending. Based on market commentary, it is reasonable to expect this to grow further over the coming years meaning the Company is well positioned to grow its deployment and levels of business.
- Addressing Challenges. While the Company's 12-month rolling return has shown a slight reduction since the last rights issue in March 2024, it continues to benefit from a growing team with the ability to deploy capital effectively and manage increased amounts. The Company has also managed a period where default rates and bad debt provisions have needed attention given a challenging economic environment; however, this has been negotiated with bad debt rates in line with expectations for portfolios of these natures and we look forward with confidence at forecast returns.

4. Details of the Rights Issue

The Company is proposing to raise up to £1,141,266,000 before expenses from Existing Shareholders under the Rights Issue. In aggregate, a total of up to 671,683,104 Rights Issue Shares are available to Qualifying Shareholders pursuant to the Rights Issue at the Issue Price, payable in full on acceptance. Any Rights Issue Shares not subscribed for by Qualifying Shareholders will not be available to other persons and those rights will lapse. The estimated costs of the Rights Issue are the aggregate of 2% of the gross amount subscribed for Right Issue Shares and £50,000 plus VAT, in respect of professional costs.

The Issue Price is £1.699114, being the Company's latest (unaudited) NAV per Share on 28 February 2025 (£1.665132), grossed up by an amount equivalent to the Initial Charge. The Initial Charge is payable by the Company to TPIM, as promoter of the Rights Issue. In addition, a Dealing in Charge of 1% on the amount being subscribed for is payable directly to TPIM by each Investor.

Qualifying Shareholders may apply for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue Offer at the Issue Price on the following basis:

2 Rights Issue Shares for every 1 Existing Ordinary Share registered in their name on the Record Date.

Valid applications by Qualifying Shareholders will be satisfied in full up to their Rights Issue Entitlements as shown on the letter to the Shareholder. Applicants can apply for less than their Rights Issue Entitlements under the Rights Issue, but cannot apply for more.

Rights Issue Shares which are not applied for by Qualifying Shareholders will not be available for issue. The Instruction Form is not a document of title and cannot be traded or otherwise transferred.

Further details of the Rights Issue and the terms and conditions on which it is being made, including the procedure for application and payment, are contained in Part 7 of this Prospectus and in the accompanying Instruction Form.

The Rights Issue Shares will be issued free of all liens, charges and encumbrances and will, when issued and fully paid, rank *pari passu* in all respects with the Existing Ordinary Shares, including the right to receive all dividends and other distributions declared, made or paid after the date of their issue.

5. Fees

TPIM, the promoter of the Rights Issue, will receive from the Company an Initial Charge of 2% of the gross amount subscribed under the Rights Issue (which does not include amounts payable under the Dealing in Charge). The Initial Charge is effectively charged to those Investors taking up their rights through the calculation of the Issue Price, which is based on the latest NAV per Share on 28 February 2025 (£1.665132) grossed up by the Initial Charge of 2%. The Initial Charge is paid by the Company (and not the Investor) to TPIM.

Investors will pay to TPIM a Dealing in Charge of 1% of gross amounts subscribed by them under the Rights Issue, as promoter of the Rights Issue.

6. Directors' participation in the Rights Issue

As none of the Directors hold any Shares, they will not be participating in the Rights Issue and, accordingly, following the completion of the Rights Issue, they will not hold any Shares in the Company.

7. Action to be taken in respect of the Rights Issue

Qualifying Shareholders wishing to apply for Rights Issue Shares must complete the enclosed Instruction Form in accordance with the instructions set out in paragraph 3 of Part 7 (Terms and Conditions of the Rights Issue) of this Prospectus and return it, with, or having made the appropriate payment to Client Operations, Triple Point, 1 King William Street, London, EC4N 7AF, so as to arrive no later than 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025. This can be extended at the Directors' discretion.

If Shareholders do not wish to apply for any Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue, they should not complete or return the Instruction Form.

Before investing in the Rights Issue Shareholders are urged to take their own independent financial advice.

8. Risk Factors and additional information

The attention of Shareholders is drawn to the risk factors set out on pages 11 to 15 and the information contained in Parts 4 and 6 of this document, which provide additional information on the Company.

The Board are pleased with the financial strength and performance of the Company and look forward to being in a position to utilise the funds raised through this rights issue to enhance the business for the benefit of all shareholders.

Yours faithfully

Toby Furnivall For and on behalf of Navigator Trading Limited

Part 2 – Information on the Company

Introduction

Navigator Trading Limited ("**Navigator Trading**" or "the Company") is a company that trades through its participation in trading partnerships. Funds raised by the Company are deployed, by way of capital contributions, into those partnerships, which provide funding to a large and diverse range of small and medium sized enterprises in the following areas:

- Specialty Finance. This includes the provision of wholesale credit lines to specialty finance providers who then on-lend to end borrowers which are typically small businesses taking direct short-term loans. Small and medium-sized enterprises ("SMEs") use these loans as a supplement or replacement for an overdraft facility or traditional bank finance, and many will use their facilities to expand commercial capabilities or to purchase stock. This also includes provision of wholesale credit lines to specialist property lenders who assess and originate property bridging loans. Loans are normally provided at an advance rate to a lender who will onward lend at a typical maximum 75% loan to value secured by underlying properties.
- **SME Debt Finance.** Provision of capital for SMEs who need finance for growth, acquisition, or existing shareholder buyout. Lending is to established, cash flow-generative and profitable businesses.
- **Property Development.** In this business segment loans are provided for development of residential and commercial property. All loans have strong security over the underlying property and prudent loan-to-value ratios.
- **Corporate.** Provision of leasing and loan finance facilities to support the acquisition of tangible assets, intangible assets, or provide direct finance for working capital purposes by Corporates which are defined as having one of the following: turnover greater than £50m, balance sheet greater than £40m, or greater than 250 employees.
- **Infrastructure Finance.** Financing for infrastructure and industrial projects on a stand-alone basis (without guarantees or financial support from the borrower's parent company or group), using the cash flows generated by the project to fulfil the debt obligation.

In providing finance, the Company considers how environmental, social and governance factors may impact the success of the loans, it will also take in to account how activities affect the environment and society, and have a preference for lending to companies with strong business behaviours.

Directors of the Company (all of whom are non-executive)

Michael Bayer

Michael was appointed a Director in March 2021. Michael has held a number of finance and investment positions including leading the investment and subsequent realisation for the pioneering Triple Point VCTs. He has 28 years' experience in the financial and investment sectors and has held roles at 3i plc, Dresdner Kleinwort and Ernst & Young in their private equity, leveraged finance and corporate finance teams. Michael qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Ernst & Young and holds the Advanced Diploma in Corporate Finance from the Corporate Finance Faculty of the ICAEW/CISI. Michael has a degree in Physics and Business Studies from the University of Warwick.

Sean Brophy

Sean was appointed a director of the Company in November 2023. Sean has 20 years' experience in Banking across real estate, leveraged finance and debt restructuring specialisms, working across both mainstream banking and alternative finance. Sean has degrees in Finance and Economics and completed an MBA in Imperial College Business School where his thesis focused on lending to high-growth businesses in the UK.

Michael Francis

Michael was appointed a director of the Company in October 2022. He has over 30 years of experience in financial services having built a market leading asset finance practice at Investec before becoming co-head of

the investment banking division. He has a biochemistry degree from University College of Wales and is a fellow of the Association of Certified Chartered Accountants.

Christopher Fleming-Brown

Chris was appointed a director of the Company in January 2014. He has wide experience in corporate and private client financial services having previously held the position of director at Schroders merchant bank, Credit Suisse Private Banking, Barclays Wealth, Egerton Partners private client advisers and EFG Private Bank. He has an Economics degree from London School of Economics.

Toby Furnivall

Toby was appointed a director of the Company in March 2021. He has 20 years' experience in lending, having worked in Banking for the majority of his career before joining a Peer to Peer lending platform. He has a degree in Financial Services & Business Management and is a qualified member of the Association of Certified Chartered Accountants.

TPIM and TPCM - Corporate Services Providers

TPIM is an independent investment management limited liability partnership founded in 2004 and is part of the Triple Point Group. On the date of this Prospectus, the Triple Point Group has over £2.9 billion in assets under management spread across four main investment areas: private credit, energy infrastructure, housing, and venture capital. TPIM is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

TPIM, together with its associated business, Triple Point Credit Management LLP (TPCM), are the Company's Corporate Services Providers and in that capacity provide a range of corporate services to the Company both directly and indirectly through its highly experienced Private Credit, company secretarial and finance teams. These services typically include deal origination, due diligence, underwriting and execution, client relationship management, portfolio monitoring and administration, accounting and secretarial. Each year the Directors and the Corporate Services Providers agree the figure for the cost of these services which will not exceed 1.9% plus VAT if relevant of the value of the Company. This excludes fees and charges paid by the Company for other third party services such as solicitors, valuers, directors, and its audit.

TPIM also provides day to day managerial oversight and assistance for which it charges fees equal to 0.5% of the value of the Company.

TPIM is also acting as promoter of the Rights Issue, for which role it will receive an Initial Charge from the Company of 2% of the gross amount subscribed under the Rights Issue as well as a 1% Dealing In Charge.

TPIM Team

Toby Furnivall: Managing Director, Private Credit

See above

Sean Brophy, Chief Commercial Officer, Business Finance

See above

Gary Forshaw: Head of Credit, Private Credit

Gary is Head of Credit for the Private Credit Team. He is a member of Triple Point's Investment Committee and has an active role in setting and monitoring credit appetite for all Corporate and SME debt. He has over 17 years' experience in finance having previously worked within Santander and Lloyds Corporate Banking Divisions. His previous positions have covered Risk, Origination and Debt Restructuring with a focus on mid-market Corporate & SME lending.

Chloé Smith: Finance and Operations Director, Private Credit

Chloé is responsible for the Private Credit finance and operations team at Triple Point, bringing over 12 years of industry experience, including eight years in the Asset Finance & Leasing division at Close Brothers Plc. She is a qualified member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

The Directors retain responsibility for monitoring the activities of TPIM and TPCM, the Company's Corporate Services Providers, in carrying out these functions and for ensuring that conflicts of interests are managed and Shareholders' interests are protected. TPIM has a 'Conflicts of Interest Procedure' that outlines its approach to managing conflicts. This includes quarterly meetings of its conflicts committee which consists of senior management and key personnel who deal with conflicts as part of their role. New conflicts that have been identified are discussed and entered on the conflicts register where relevant. TPIM also has a deal allocation programme that governs how new funding opportunities are allocated between suitable lenders. In addition, in the case of the Company, all financing decisions, where there may be a conflict between the interests of the Company and those of TPIM, must also be approved by the independent directors of the Company. The Directors are solely responsible for determining the partnerships in which the Company participates, and in making that decision the Directors will have regard to an appropriate spread of exposure to the business-lines set out above.

Performance

In the year to 31 March 2024 the NAV rose from £374.5 million to £467.9 million, its total revenue from £16.4 million to £22.1 million and its net profit from £11.3 million to £14.5 million. The underlying portfolio of loans made by the Partnerships have experienced a period where default rates and bad debt provisions have needed attention given a challenging economic environment; however, this has been negotiated with bad debt rates now in line with expectations. The annualised loss rate has increased to 0.6% which is considered reasonable for a portfolio of this nature however this is 0.1% up on prior year and is expected to reduce back to c0.5% over the next 12-24 months with the anticipation of improving economic conditions. Should these not materialise, it is reasonable to expect the annualised loss rate to stay closer to 0.6-0.7%. It is worth noting that despite this tick up in provisions, Company performance continues to meet expectations. As a result of the Partnerships making provisions the Company's Partnership contributions, those contributions being the aggregate of capital provided, and retained profit share less accrued provisions. With provisions made in the Partnerships, the annualised year to date return at 31 December 2024 was 4.05%. The Company has maintained the ability to source new lending opportunities and net funds raised under the Rights Issue will be deployed by making further contributions to the Partnerships who will use those funds to make further loans.

Dividend policy

The Directors have no current intention of paying any dividends.

Subsidiaries

The Company has no subsidiaries.

Costs of the Rights Issue

TPIM, the Company's Corporate Services Provider, will receive an Initial Charge from the Company of 2% of the gross amount subscribed under the Rights Issue (which does not include amounts payable under the Dealing in Charge), as promoter of the Rights Issue. The Initial Charge is effectively charged to those Investors taking up their rights through the calculation of the Issue Price, which is based on the latest (unaudited) NAV per Share on 28 February 2025 (£1.665132) grossed up by the Initial Charge of 2%. The Initial Charge is not payable separately to the Issue Price. In addition to the Initial Charge, the Company is also liable to pay £50,000 plus VAT of professional costs and expenses in connection with the Rights Issue.

In addition, TPIM, as the promoter of the Rights Issue, will be paid by Investors a Dealing in Charge of 1% of gross amounts subscribed by them under the Rights Issue.

Running cost of the Company

The annual running costs of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were 0.03% of its Net Asset Value.

Reporting to Shareholders

Copies of the audited annual results made up to 31 March in each year can be found at Companies House or can be made available to Shareholders on request.

Тах

Further information regarding the taxation position of the Company and Shareholders is set out in Part 3. Before subscribing for Rights Issue Shares, Investors are strongly advised to seek their own independent financial and tax advice.

Part 3 – Taxation

The following statements are by way of a general guide to Shareholders only and do not constitute legal or tax advice. Shareholders are, therefore, advised to consult their professional advisors concerning possible taxation or other consequences of purchasing, holding, selling or otherwise disposing of Shares under the laws of their countries of incorporation, establishment, citizenship, residence or domicile. Shareholders should be aware that the relevant law and practice or the interpretation of those may change, possibly with retrospective effect. The following summary of the anticipated tax treatment is not a guarantee to any Shareholder of the tax consequences from subscribing for Shares in the Rights Issue. Tax legislation in the Investor's member state may have an impact on the income received from the Shares.

United Kingdom

The following summary, which should be read as a whole, is intended only as a general guide to certain aspects of current UK tax law and HMRC practice as at the date of this document and applies only to certain Shareholders resident and domiciled for tax purposes in the UK and who hold their Shares beneficially and as an investment. This summary does not constitute legal or tax advice. It does not apply to particular classes of Shareholder, such as: (i) Shareholders who are taxable in the UK on a remittance basis; (ii) Shareholders who are subject to special tax rules such as banks, financial institutions, broker-dealers, insurance companies, trustees of certain trusts and investment companies; (iii) Shareholders subject to mark-to-market treatment; (iv) Shareholders who hold Shares in connection with a trade, profession or vocation carried out in the UK (whether through a branch, agency or otherwise); (v) Shareholders who hold Shares as part of hedging or commercial transactions; (vi) Shareholders who receive their Shares by exercising employee share options or otherwise as compensation or persons who have acquired or who are deemed to have acquired their Shares by virtue of any office or employment; or (vii) Shareholders who are not resident and not domiciled in the UK for tax purposes.

This summary does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all the potential UK tax consequences of acquiring, disposing of, or holding Shares. In particular, future legislative, judicial or administrative changes or interpretations could alter or modify the tax treatment set out below and these changes or interpretations could be retroactive and could affect the tax consequences of the Rights Issue or the treatment of any acquisition, holding or disposal of Shares for Shareholders. None of the Company or the promoter or any of their officers, directors, members, employees, advisers or agents can be held responsible in this regard. Prospective subscribers are advised to consult their own professional advisers on the implications of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Rights Issue Shares both under UK law and under the laws of any other jurisdictions in which they may be liable to taxation.

Shareholders

Inheritance Tax (IHT)

The Shares will be an asset in a Shareholder's estate and exposed to IHT at the prevailing rate (currently 40%) to the extent that the Shares do not fully qualify for Business Relief.

Business Relief (BR)

The main requirements for BR in relation to the Shares are that the Shareholder has owned the Shares for at least two years at the time of the relevant transfer of value, the Shares are unquoted and that the business of the Company is a qualifying business for BR. This requires the Company to be one which will not be wholly or mainly dealing in securities, stocks or shares, land or buildings or making or holding investments.

If the business of the Company and/or any subsidiaries is a qualifying business for BR, excepted assets can reduce the relief to the extent that assets have not been used for the purpose of the business and are not required for the future use of the business.

If a Shareholder holds the Shares for fewer than two years so that they do not qualify for BR in their own right, but the Shareholder has previously held other assets qualifying for BR, it may be possible to aggregate the combined ownership period in order to qualify for BR on the Shares if the combined ownership covers at least two years out of the previous five years. The BR available would be limited to that which would have been available on the previously owned asset.

On 30 October 2024, the Right Honourable Rachel Reeves announced various changes to Business Relief, which may have an impact on the amount of relief that is received. The changes were wide ranging and included that, from 6 April 2026, rather than being uncapped, there will be a single £1 million allowance covering both Business Relief and Agricultural Property Relief where qualifying business assets and agricultural assets will receive 100% relief. Any value in excess of £1m will instead receive 50% relief. Where trusts have been established before 30 October 2024 with eligible business or agricultural property, each will have a £1 million allowance for 100% relief from April 2026. This is to be restricted for trusts set up on or after 30 October 2024, whereby the £1m allowance will be divided between trusts. It was also announced that unspent pensions would be brought into scope for inheritance tax from April 2027. These changes and any others that may follow may have an impact on estate planning decisions and the availability of Business Relief.

Rights Issue and Business Relief

Where a Qualifying Shareholder subscribes for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue and the Rights Issue Shares acquired are derived from the Qualifying Shareholder's original shareholding in the Company, then the Rights Issue Shares should take on the ownership period of the original Shares for BR purposes per s107(4) IHTA 1984, provided that as is intended the Rights Issue is a qualifying reorganisation for Capital Gains Tax ("CGT") purposes in accordance with s126 to s136 of TCGA 1992.

Dividends

The Company has no intentions to pay dividends on the Shares.

Should dividends be paid, they may be subject to income tax on the amount received at a rate for 2025-26 of 8.75% (for basic rate taxpayers), 33.75% (for higher rate taxpayers) and 39.35% (for additional rate taxpayers). Individuals receive a tax-free £500 dividend allowance. The allowance exempts the first £500 of a taxpayer's dividend income but does not reduce total taxable income and thus counts towards taxable income in determining how much of the basic rate band or high rate band has been used. No UK taxation will be withheld at source from dividend payments made by the Company to its Shareholders.

Disposals of shares – capital gains tax and income tax

Shareholders who are resident in the UK are liable to capital gains tax on any gain when they sell their Shares to third parties. The rate of capital gains tax which applies to a sale of shares is currently 18% or 24% depending on their level of income and gains.

If sold by their executors after their death there is a flat rate of 20%, but in calculating the gain there is a tax free uplift in the base cost of the Shares to the market value at the time of their death. Any gain may also be reduced by the annual capital gains tax exemption available to a Shareholder's executors (currently £3,000).

If the Shares are sold to a new Shareholder, then the amount paid over and above the subscription price paid by the Shareholder will be subject to capital gains tax (subject to available exemptions and reliefs).

If the Shares are redeemed by the Company, rather than sold to a new shareholder, the redemption amount paid above the subscription price paid by the original subscriber of those Shares may be subject to income tax instead of capital gains tax.

Stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax (SDRT)

The following comments are intended as a guide to the general UK stamp duty and SDRT position and (except insofar as expressly referred to below) do not relate to persons such as market makers, brokers, dealers, intermediaries, persons connected with deposit receipt arrangements or clearance services or persons who enter into sale and repurchase transactions in respect of the Rights Issue Shares, to whom special rules apply. No United Kingdom stamp duty or SDRT will be payable on the issue of the Rights Issue Shares direct to persons acquiring those shares pursuant to the Rights Issue. United Kingdom stamp duty or SDRT will be payable on a transfer of, or agreement to transfer, Rights Issue Shares. This is normally at a rate of 0.5% of the consideration, rounded up in the case of stamp duty to the nearest £5. Any SDRT liability arising on an agreement to transfer Rights Issue Shares will generally be cancelled if the instrument transferring the Rights Issue Shares is executed and is either duly stamped or is not chargeable to stamp duty or otherwise required

to be stamped.

Part 4 – Financial Information on the Company

1. Introduction

Audited statutory accounts of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 in respect of which the Company's auditor, Saffery Champness LLP, 71 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4BE, registered by The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, made unqualified reports under section 495 of the 2006 Act, have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies and such reports did not contain any statements under section 498(2) or (3) of the 2006 Act. Copies of these audited statutory accounts are available at 1 King William Street, London, EC4N 7AF.

The audited statutory accounts of the Company are drawn up under the Financial Reporting Standard 102 ("FRS 102") Section 1A – small entities, and previously under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). The Company and the Directors confirm that the Company's most recent financial information for the year ended 31 March 2024 (prepared under FRS 102) has been presented and prepared in a form which is consistent with that which will be adopted in the Company's next published annual financial statements having regard to accounting standards, policies and legislation applicable to such annual financial statements.

These financial statements also contain a description of the Company's financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations for each financial period.

2. Historical Financial Information

Historical financial information relating to the Company on the matters referred to below is included in the audited statutory accounts of the Company for the periods stated (which are hereby incorporated by reference) as follows:

| Description | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 |
|---------------------------------|---------------|---------------|
| | Page No. | Page No. |
| Directors' Report | 1-4 | 1-5 |
| Independent Auditor's Report | 5-8 | 6-8 |
| Income Statement | 9 | 9 |
| Statement of Financial Position | 10 | 10 |
| Statement of Changes in Equity | 11 | 11 |
| Statement of Cash Flow | 12 | 12 |
| Notes to Financial Statements | 13-19 | 13-20 |

Where these documents make reference to other documents, such other documents are not incorporated into and do not form part of this Prospectus. Those parts of the annual statutory accounts referred to above which are not being incorporated into this document by reference are either not relevant for Investors or are covered elsewhere in this Prospectus. Copies of the audited statutory accounts of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 can be accessed through the following hyperlink: https://www.navigatortrading.co.uk/key-documents.

3. Net Asset Value

Since 31 March 2024, being the end of the last financial period for which information has been provided in this Prospectus, the NAV has increased from £468 million to £551 million as at 28 February 2025 (being the latest (unaudited) NAV prior to publication of this Prospectus, an unaudited increase in NAV of £83 million). Over the same period the NAV per Share rose from £1.605250 on 31 March 2024 (audited) to £1.665132 on 28 February 2025 (unaudited).

4. Significant change

From 31 March 2024, up to 28 February 2025, the Company has raised £65.4 million of new capital through share subscriptions. For the 11 months to 28 February 2025 the Company had generated profits of £17.3 million. The net asset value ("NAV") of the Company has risen from £468 million at 31 March 2024 (audited) to £551 million as at 28 February 2025 (unaudited). The underlying portfolio of loans made by the Partnerships have

experienced a period where default rates and bad debt provisions have needed attention given a challenging economic environment; however, this has been negotiated with bad debt rates now in line with expectations. The annualised loss rate has increased to 0.6% which is considered reasonable for a portfolio of this nature however this is 0.1% up on prior year and is expected to reduce back to c0.5% over the next 12-24 months with the anticipation of improving economic conditions. Should these not materialise, it is reasonable to expect the annualised loss rate to stay closer to 0.6-0.7%. It is worth noting that despite this tick up in provisions, Company performance continues to meet expectations. These provisions are effectively reflected in the value of Company's Partnership contributions, those contributions being the aggregate of capital provided, and retained profit share less accrued provisions. With provisions made in the trading partnerships, the 12 month rolling return at 28 February 2025 was 4.01%. Save as set out above, there has been no significant change in the financial position of the Company which has occurred since 31 March 2024, being the end of the last financial period for which audited financial statements have been published, to the date of this Prospectus.

5. Operating and Financial Review

Principal Activities

Through the Partnerships, the principal activity of the Company is to provide finance to small and medium sized enterprises.

The Company's mission is to provide funding in a form which is tailored to the needs of these small, usually owner-managed businesses and can be flexible enough to help them to deal with the demands of their market place.

Through the Partnerships, the Company focuses on the following areas:

- Specialty Finance. This includes the provision of wholesale credit lines to specialty finance providers who then on-lend to end borrowers which are typically small businesses taking direct short-term loans. SMEs use these loans as a supplement or replacement for an overdraft facility or traditional bank finance, and many will use their facilities to expand commercial capabilities or to purchase stock. This also includes provision of wholesale credit lines to specialist property lenders who assess and originate property bridging loans. Loans are normally provided at an advance rate to a lender who will onward lend at a typical maximum 75% LTV secured by underlying properties. Specialty Finance also includes funds finance lending facilities to established funds to assist with growth and liquidity, again secured on a pool of assets at conservative LTVs or legally contracted commitments from high quality counterparties.
- **SME Debt Finance.** Provision of capital for SMEs who need finance for growth, acquisition, or existing shareholder buyout. Lending is to established, cash flow-generative and profitable businesses.
- **Property Development.** In this business segment loans are provided for development of residential and commercial property. All loans have strong security over the underlying property and prudent loan-to-value ratios.
- **Corporate.** Provision of leasing and loan finance facilities to support the acquisition of tangible assets, intangible assets, or provide direct finance for working capital purposes by Corporates which are defined as having one of the following: turnover greater than £50m, balance sheet greater than £40m, or greater than 250 employees.
- **Infrastructure Finance.** Financing for infrastructure and industrial projects on a stand-alone basis (without guarantees or financial support from the borrower's parent company or group), using the cash flows generated by the project to fulfil the debt obligation.

Business Environment

The Partnerships' focus is on maintaining commercial terms and ensuring loan covenants act as a forward looking indicator of borrower performance. They are also continuing to focus on due diligence and loan monitoring, thoroughly assessing new opportunities and monitoring the performance of the existing portfolio, conscious of the prevailing economic and political conditions they are operating in, most notably the rates of inflation and high interest rates.

In the year to 31 March 2024, the Company generated a net profit for the year of £14.4 million. The net asset value rose from £374.5 million to £467.9 million during the year to 31 March 2024, and the Company raised £49.1 million of new share capital. The net funds raised, after running costs, were deployed, by way of capital contribution into the Partnerships.

The main risks to the business of the Company are set out on pages 11 to 15.

In determining the Company's key performance indicators, the Board will have regard to the NAV and the amount of cash deployed in the Partnerships, and the amount of cash deployed by the Partnerships. The principal factors that have affected the Company's financial condition during the financial years to 31 March 2023 and to 31 March 2024 and, to date, have been the macroeconomic environment, the availability of suitable investment opportunities for the Partnerships and the performance of their loans and leasing portfolios.

The principal factors that the Company expects will affect its results of operations and financial condition in the future include the prevailing economic environment including the macro factors of tax rates, inflation, interest rates, changes in fiscal policy, its ability to identify suitable lending and leasing opportunities, through the Partnerships, the performance of those opportunities including any provision for bad debts and generally its ability to carry out its strategic objectives.

Part 5 – Definitions

Where used in this Prospectus the following words and expressions will, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings:

| 2006 Act, Act or CA 2006 | Companies Act 2006, as amended from time to time |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| A Ordinary Shares | the A ordinary shares of £1.00 each in the capital of the Company |
| Articles | the articles of association of the Company as at the date of this |
| | document |
| Board or Directors | board of directors of the Company |
| BR or Business Relief | Business Relief (formerly known as Business Property Relief) as |
| | set out in the Inheritance Tax Act 1984 |
| Business Days | any day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday, on |
| | which clearing banks in London are open for all normal banking |
| | business |
| Company or Navigator Trading | Navigator Trading Limited (registered number 08202073) |
| Corporate Services Providers | TPIM and TPCM |
| Dealing in Charge | the fee payable by each Investor to TPIM of an amount equal to |
| | 1% of the gross sums subscribed under the Rights Issue by the |
| | Investor |
| Enlarged Share Capital | the entire issued ordinary share capital of the Company |
| | immediately following completion of the Rights Issue |
| Existing Issued Share Capital or | |
| Existing Ordinary Shares | Ordinary Shares in issue at the date of this document |
| Existing Shareholders FCA | existing holders of Ordinary Shares |
| FSMA | the Financial Conduct Authority of the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended from time |
| FSWA | to time |
| HMRC | His Majesty's Revenue and Customs |
| Initial Charge | the fee payable by the Company to the Corporate Services |
| initial onaligo | Provider of an amount equal to 2% of the gross proceeds of the |
| | Rights Issue (which does not include amounts payable under the |
| | Dealing in Charge) |
| Instruction Form | the form of instruction for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights |
| | Issue |
| Intermediary | a firm who signs the Instruction Form and whose details are set |
| - | out in Section 12 of the Instruction Form |
| Investor | a subscriber for Rights Issue Shares |
| Issue Price | £1.699114 per Rights Issue Share |
| LTV | loan to value |
| Money Laundering Regulations | the Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds |
| | (Information on the Payer) Regulations 2017, the money |
| | laundering provisions of the Criminal Justice Act 1993 and the |
| | Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 |
| MTF | multilateral trading facilities |
| NAV or Net Asset Value | net asset value per Share |
| Net Assets | gross assets less all liabilities (excluding contingent liabilities) of |
| | the Company |
| Ordinary Shares or Shares | the ordinary shares of 1 penny each in the capital of the Company |
| Partnerships | the partnerships through which the Company trades as a partner |
| Promoter Agreement | the agreement dated 8 April 2025 between the Company (1), the |
| | Directors (2) and TPIM (3), a summary of which is set out in |
| Brospostus | paragraph 8.1.1 of Part 6 of the Prospectus this document which describes the Rights Issue in full |
| Prospectus Prospectus Regulation | the UK version of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 |
| i iospecius Regulation | |

| Prospectus Regulation Rules | the Prospectus Regulation rules by the FCA under section 73A of |
|-----------------------------|--|
| | FSMA, as amended from time to time |
| Public Sector | the sector of the economy that provides a range of government services |
| Qualifying Shareholders | holders of Existing Ordinary Shares on the register of members of the Company at the Record Date |
| Record Date | 5pm on 7 April 2025 in respect of the entitlements of Qualifying Shareholders under the Rights Issue |
| Rights Issue | the proposed issue of Shares offered by the Company to its Existing Shareholders in proportion to their holding of Shares on the terms set out in in this Prospectus |
| Rights Issue Entitlement | the entitlement of Qualifying Shareholders to subscribe for Rights Issue Shares allocated to Qualifying Shareholders on the Record Date pursuant to the Rights Issue |
| Rights Issue Shares | up to 671,683,104 Shares being made available to Qualifying Shareholders pursuant to the Rights Issue |
| Securities Act | US Securities Act of 1993 (as amended) |
| Shareholders | holder(s) of Shares |
| SMEs | small and medium-sized enterprises |
| SME Growth Market | an MTF that is registered as an SME growth market in |
| | accordance with article 33 of the MIFID II Directive |
| Sterling | the lawful currency of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland |
| TPAL | Triple Point Administration LLP, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (registered number OC391352; FCA number 618187) |
| ТРСМ | Triple Point Credit Management LLP (registered number OC451535) |
| ТРІМ | Triple Point Investment Management LLP, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (registered number OC321250; FCA number 456597) |
| Triple Point Group | Triple Point LLP (registered number OC310549), together with all businesses associated with it including TPIM and TPAL |
| UK or United Kingdom | the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland |

Part 6 – General Information on the Company

1. INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

- 1.1 The legal and commercial name of the Company is Navigator Trading Limited.
- 1.2 The Company is registered in England and Wales with registration number 08202073.
- 1.3 The Company has a legal entity identifier which is 213800JNYFDXOBPVP584.
- 1.4 The ISIN of the Ordinary Shares is GB00BMXNP608 and the SEDOL is BMXNP60.
- 1.5 The Company was incorporated on 5 September 2012 and has been in existence since that date.
- 1.6 The Company is domiciled in England and Wales and its legal form is a private limited company.
- 1.7 The legislation under which the Company operates and the Ordinary Shares have been created is the Companies Act 2006.
- 1.8 The country of incorporation of the Company is England and Wales. The Company's address is 1 King William Street, London, United Kingdom, EC4N 7AFand the telephone number of its registered office is 0207 7201 8990. The Company's website is https://www.navigatortrading.co.uk.
- 1.9 The Company does not have, nor has it had since incorporation, any employees.
- 1.10 The Company does not have any subsidiaries.
- 1.11 Since 31 March 2024, being the end of the last financial period for which information has been provided in this Prospectus, the Company's net asset value has increased from £468 million (audited) to £551 million as at 28 February 2025 (being the latest (unaudited) net asset value prior to publication of this Prospectus, an unaudited increase in net asset value of 17.7%).

2. THE DIRECTORS

- 2.1 None of the Directors have any convictions in relation to fraudulent offences for at least the previous five years.
- 2.2 None of the Directors have been subject to any official public incrimination and/or sanctions by statutory or regulatory authorities (including designated professional bodies).
- 2.3 None of the Directors have ever been disqualified by a court from acting as a member of the administrative, management or supervisory bodies of an issuer or from acting in the management or conduct of the affairs of any company for at least the previous five years.
- 2.4 Michael Bayer is a partner of Triple Point LLP, which is itself a partner of TPIM, Toby Furnivall is TPIM's Managing Director of Private Credit and Sean Brophy is TPIM's Chief Commercial Officer, Business Finance and are, therefore, interested in those contracts with the Company referred to in paragraphs 8.1.1 to 8.1.3 in this Part 6. Save for this, there is no conflict or potential conflict of interest between any duties of the Directors to the Company and their private interests and or other duties.

3 REMUNERATION, BENEFITS AND SHARE / SHARE OPTIONS

3.1 In relation to the last full financial year the amount of remuneration paid (including any contingent or deferred compensation), and benefits in kind granted to each of the Directors (and/or companies wholly owned by the relevant Director) are as follows:

| Director | Amount £ | |
|---------------------------|----------|--|
| Michael Bayer | Nil | |
| Sean Brophy | Nil | |
| Christopher Fleming-Brown | 25,000 | |
| Michael Francis | 25,000 | |
| Toby Furnivall | Nil | |

3.2 No amounts have been set aside by the Company to provide pension, retirement or similar benefits.

3.3 The Directors do not have any interests in Shares and share options in the Company.

4. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

4.1 The Shares are held by TP Nominees Limited as nominee for the Shareholders. As far as the Company is aware, no person, directly or indirectly, has a beneficial interest in the Company's capital or voting rights which is equal or above 5% of capital or total voting rights, as at the date of this Prospectus.

- 4.2 Save in respect of the interest of TP Nominees Limited as set out in paragraph 4.1 above, the Company has no major Shareholders.
- 4.3 To the extent known to the Company, the Company is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by any person.
- 4.4 There are no arrangements known to the Company, the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in or prevent a change in control of the Company.
- 4.5 The Rights Issue Shares will not be admitted for trading on a regulated market, nor will they be subject to an application for admission to trading on an MTF or an SME Growth Market.

5. LEGAL AND ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS

5.1 There have been no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings (including any such proceedings which are pending or threatened of which the Company is aware), during the period covering at least the previous 12 months which may have, or have had in the recent past, significant effects on the Company's financial position or profitability.

6. SHARE AND LOAN CAPITAL

6.1 As at 7 April 2025, the issued share capital of the Company was as follows:

| Class | Nominal Value (£) | Number of Shares | Paid up (£) |
|------------|-------------------|------------------|--------------|
| Ordinary | 0.01 | 335,841,552 | 3,358,415.52 |
| A Ordinary | 1.00 | 1 | 1 |

- 6.2 The Ordinary Shares and the A Ordinary Shares rank pari passu and have attached to them full voting, dividend and capital distribution (including on winding up) rights pro rata to their respective holding. Neither the Ordinary Shares nor the A Ordinary Share are redeemable.
- 6.3 No share or loan capital of the Company is under option or has been agreed, conditionally or unconditionally, to be put under option.
- 6.4 Since 31 March, 2024 63,798,500 Shares have been allotted at issue prices ranging from £1.600982 per Share to £1.723658 per Share.
- 6.5 The Shares are in registered and certificated form and denominated in Sterling.
- 6.6 By ordinary and special resolutions passed on 7 April 2025:
 - 6.6.1 the Directors were, in addition to existing authorities, generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with section 551 of the Act to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company or to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the Company. This power was limited to the allotment of relevant securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £6,716,831.04. Such authority was to expire at the later of 15 months from the date of the resolution or the next annual general meeting of the Company (unless previously revoked, varied or extended by the Company in a general meeting);
 - 6.6.2 the Directors were, in addition to existing authorities, empowered (pursuant to section 570(1) of the Act) to allot or make offers or agreements to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560(1) of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority referred to in paragraph 6.6.1 above as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, such power to expire the later of 15 months following the passing of the resolution or the next annual general meeting (unless previously renewed or extended by the Company in the general meeting). This power was limited to the allotment of equity securities in connection with:
 - 6.6.2.1 an offer of equity securities by way of rights; and
 - 6.6.2.2 otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 6.6.2.1, an offer of equity securities up to an aggregate nominal amount of £6,716,831.04.
- 6.7 There is no restriction on the transferability of the Shares.
- 6.8 Following the Rights Issue, assuming full subscription, the Company's issued Ordinary Share capital will be as follows:

| No. of Shares | Aggregate Nominal value |
|---------------|-------------------------|
| 1,007,524,656 | £10,075,246.56 |

7 THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

7.1 The Articles contain no provisions that would have the effect of delaying or deferring or preventing a change of control of the Company.

8 MATERIAL CONTRACTS

- 8.1 The following are the only material contracts, not entered into in the ordinary course of the Company's business, which the Company was a party to during the 12 months to the date of this Prospectus:
- 8.1.1 Under a Promoter Agreement dated 8 April 2025 between the Company (1), the Directors (2) and TPIM (3), TPIM has agreed to act as promoter in relation to the Rights Issue and has undertaken as agent of the Company to use its reasonable endeavours to procure subscribers under the Rights Issue for up to 671,683,104 Rights Issue Shares. TPIM is not obliged to underwrite the issue of the Rights Issue Shares. Under the Agreement, the Company will pay TPIM a fee of 2% of the monies subscribed under the Rights Issue, out of which TPIM will pay the costs and expenses of, or incidental to, the Rights Issue. Under the Agreement, which may be terminated by TPIM in certain circumstances, certain warranties have been given by TPIM to the Company. The Agreement may be terminated if any statement in the Prospectus is untrue, any material omission from the Prospectus arises or any breach of warranty occurs.
- 8.1.2 On 1 April 2024 the Corporate Service Providers entered into service agreements with the Partnerships for the purpose of carrying on the business of the Partnerships. Pursuant to these service agreements TPIM and TPCM are entitled to receive up to 1.9% plus VAT where applicable (on aggregate) per annum of the value of the Company for providing various services (and which include deal origination, due diligence, underwriting and execution; client relationship management, portfolio monitoring and administration; accounting and secretarial services). TPIM is also entitled to receive 0.5% plus VAT where applicable for the provision of management services.
- 8.1.3 On 25 June 2020, the Company and TPIM entered into an agreement (the "Financial Services Agreement") (as varied on 7 September 2020) whereby TPIM agreed to provide the Financial Services, as defined in the Financial Services Agreement. TPIM shall be entitled to receive a charge of up to 2% of the amount of new funds invested from time to time into the Company by TPIM (plus VAT if applicable), to be paid to TPIM within 14 days following receipt of a valid invoice.
- 8.1.4 Michael Bayer entered into an appointment letter which took effect from 1 March 2021 whereby he has agreed to act as a non-executive director of the Company for a fee of £0, terminable immediately by either party by giving written notice.
- 8.1.5 Chris Fleming-Brown has entered into an appointment letter which took effect from 1 January 2014 whereby he has agreed to act as a non-executive director of the Company for a fee of £25,000 terminable on 3 months' notice by either side.
- 8.1.6 Toby Furnivall has entered into an appointment letter which took effect from 1 March 2021 whereby he has agreed to act as a non-executive director of the Company for a fee of £0, terminable immediately by either party by giving written notice.
- 8.1.7 Michael Francis has entered into an appointment letter which took effect from 21 October 2022 whereby he has agreed to act as a non-executive director of the Company for a fee of £25,000, terminable on 3 months' notice by either side.
- 8.1.8 Sean Brophy has entered into an appointment letter which took effect from 24 November 2023 whereby he has agreed to act as a non-executive director of the Company for a fee of £0, terminable immediately by either party by giving written notice.

9 WORKING CAPITAL

9.1 The Company is of the opinion that the working capital available to the Company is sufficient for its present requirements, that is for at least the twelve month period from the date of this document. No account has been taken of the proceeds of the Rights Issue in calculating the working capital available to the Company.

10 STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION AND NET INDEBTEDNESS

10.1 The capitalisation and net indebtedness of the Company as at 28 February 2025 was:

| £ | 000 |
|---|--------|
| Total Current debt 0 | |
| Guaranteed 0 | |
| Secured 0 | |
| Unguaranteed/ Unsecured 0 | |
| Total Non-Current debt (excluding current portion of long –term debt) 0 | |
| Guaranteed 0 | |
| Secured 0 | |
| Unguaranteed/ Unsecured 0 | |
| Shareholder's equity: | |
| a. Share capital 3 | ,307 |
| b. Legal Reserve 0 | |
| c. Other Reserves 5 | 47,420 |
| Total 5 | 50,727 |
| | |
| | 55 |
| Cash equivalents 0 Liquidity 0 | |
| Current financial receivable 0 | |
| Current bank debt 0 | |
| Current position of non-current debt 0 | |
| | ,934 |
| Current financial debt 0 | |
| Net current financial cash/(indebtedness)0Non-current bank loans0 | |
| Other non-current loans 0 | |
| • | 52,506 |
| Non-current financial indebtedness 0 | , |
| Net financial cash/(indebtedness) 0 | |
| Total 55 | 50,727 |

There has been no material change to the capitalisation and net indebtedness since 28 February 2025.

11 STAMP DUTY, STAMP DUTY RESERVE TAX AND CLOSE COMPANY STATUS

- 11.1 The Company has been advised that no stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax ("**SDRT**") will be payable on the issue of the Rights Issue Shares issued under the Rights Issue.
- 11.2 The transfer or sale of any Rights Issue Shares will be liable to ad valorem stamp duty normally at the rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of the consideration (rounded up to the nearest £5). An unconditional agreement to transfer Rights Issue Shares also gives rise to an obligation to account for SDRT, which is payable within seven days of the start of the month following that in which the agreement was entered into. The payment of stamp duty gives rise to a right to repayment of any SDRT paid. Following the issue of the Rights Issue Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue, the Company is not likely to be a close company for tax purposes.

12 THIRD PARTY INFORMATION

12.1 Information in this Prospectus that has been sourced from a third party has been accurately reproduced and, as far as the Company is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by that third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.

13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

13.1 Other than the appointment letters referred to in paragraphs 8.1.7 and 8.1.8 above, there were no related party transactions for the Company undertaken during the financial periods covered by the historical financial information referred to in Part 4 of this document which required disclosure and the Company has not entered into any related party transactions between 31 March 2024 and the date of this document.

14 MISCELLANEOUS

- 14.1 Since 31 March 2024 there have been no significant trends in production, sales, inventory, cost and selling prices.
- 14.2 There are no family relationships between any of the Directors.
- 14.3 The Company has no current intention of paying dividends.
- 14.4 Tax may be payable on any income received from the Shares.
- 14.5 Following publication of the Prospectus the Company will become subject to the City Code on Takeover and Mergers ("the **City Code**").
 - 14.5.1 **Mandatory takeover bids:** The City Code applies to all takeover and merger transactions in relation to the Company and operates principally to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly and are not denied an opportunity to decide on the merits of a takeover and that shareholders of the same class are afforded equivalent treatment. The City Code provides an orderly framework within which takeovers are conducted and the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers (the **"Panel**") has now been placed on a statutory footing. The Takeovers Directive was implemented in the UK in May 2006 and since 6 April 2007 has effect through the Act. The Takeovers Directive applies to takeovers of companies registered in an EU member state and admitted to trading on a regulated market in the EU or the EEA States.
 - 14.5.2 The City Code is based upon a number of General Principles which are essentially statements of standards of commercial behaviour. General Principle One states that all holders of securities of an offeree company of the same class must be afforded equivalent treatment and if a person acquires control of a company the other holders of securities must be protected. This is reinforced by Rule 9 of the City Code which requires that a person, together with persons acting in concert with him, who acquires shares carrying voting rights which amount to 30% or more of the voting rights to make a general offer. "Voting rights" for these purposes means all the voting rights attributable to the share capital of a company which are currently exercisable at a general meeting. A general offer will also be required where a person, who, together with persons acting in concert with him, holds not less than 30% but not more than 50% of the voting rights, acquires additional shares which increase his percentage of the voting rights. Unless the Panel consents, the offer must be made to all other shareholders, be in cash (or have a cash alternative) and cannot be conditional on anything other than the securing of acceptances which will result in the offeror and persons acting in concert with him holding shares carrying more than 50% of the voting rights.
 - 14.5.3 There are not in existence any current mandatory takeover bids in relation to the Company.
 - 14.5.4 **Squeeze out**: Section 979 of the Act provides that if, within certain time limits, an offer is made for the share capital of a company, the offeror is entitled to acquire compulsorily any remaining shares if it has, by virtue of acceptances of the offer, acquired or unconditionally contracted to acquire not less than 90% in value of the shares to which the offer relates and in a case where the shares to which the offer relates are voting shares, not less than 90%, of the voting rights carried by those shares. The offeror would effect the compulsory acquisition by sending a notice to outstanding shareholders telling them that it will compulsorily acquire their shares and then, six weeks from the date of the notice, pay the consideration for the shares to the relevant company to hold on trust for the outstanding shareholders. The consideration offered to shareholders whose shares are compulsorily acquired under the Act must, in general, be the same as the consideration available under the takeover offer.
 - 14.5.5 **Sell out**: Section 983 of the Act permits a minority shareholder to require an offeror to acquire its shares if the offeror has acquired or contracted to acquire shares in a company which amount to not less than 90% in value of all the voting shares in the company and carry not less than 90%, of the voting rights. Certain time limits apply to this entitlement.

If a shareholder exercises its rights under these provisions, the offeror is bound to acquire those shares on the terms of the offer or on such other terms as may be agreed.

- 14.6 As none of the Directors are Shareholders they are not eligible to subscribe for any Rights Issue Shares.
- 14.7 Expenses of the Rights Issue are effectively charged to Investors through the calculation of the Issue Price. In addition, Investors will pay the Dealing in Charge directly to TPIM, as promoter of the Rights Issue, in the amount of 1% of the gross amount subscribed by them through the Rights Issue. The estimated costs of the Rights Issue payable by the Company are the aggregate of 2% of the gross amount subscribed for Right Issue Shares and £50,000 plus VAT in respect of professional costs.
- 14.8 Assuming full subscription, the Rights Issue Shares will constitute 200% of the Existing Issued Share Capital, which will represent 33.33% of the Enlarged Share Capital. Any Shareholder who does not or cannot take up any of their rights will therefore suffer a dilution of up to 66.67% of ownership in the Company. However, the Issue Price is based on the NAV, so there should be minimal dilution of value.

15 DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

15.1 Copies of the following documents are available for inspection, free of charge, from the Company's registered office, where they are also on display, and from Triple Point Investment Management LLP at 1 King William Street, London, EC4N 7AF during normal business hours on any weekday (public holidays excepted) and on the Company's website at:

https://www.navigatortrading.co.uk/key-documents

from the date of this document until the closing date of the Rights Issue:

- (a) the Articles; and
- (b) the Company's audited annual accounts for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024.

8 April 2025

Part 7 – Terms and Conditions of the Rights Issue

Introduction

The Company is seeking to raise gross proceeds of up to \pounds 1,141,266,000 by way of the Rights Issue at an Issue Price of \pounds 1.699114 per Rights Issue Share, being the Company's latest (unaudited) NAV on 28 February 2025 (\pounds 1.665132) grossed up by an amount equivalent to the Initial Charge.

The purpose of this Part 7 is to set out the terms and conditions of the Rights Issue. Up to 671,683,104 new Ordinary Shares will be issued through the Rights Issue. Qualifying Shareholders are being offered the right to subscribe for Rights Issue Shares in accordance with the terms of the Rights Issue. The Rights Issue has not been underwritten.

The Record Date for entitlements under the Rights Issue for Qualifying Shareholders is 5 p.m. on 7 April 2025. The latest time and date for receipt of a completed Instruction Form and payment in full under the Rights Issue is 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025 (subject to the Directors' discretion).

This document and the Instruction Form contains the formal terms and conditions of the Rights Issue. Your attention is drawn to paragraph 3 of this Part 7 "Terms and Conditions of the Rights Issue" which gives details of the procedure for application and payment for the Rights Issue Shares. The attention of overseas Shareholders is drawn to paragraph 5 of this Part 7.

The Rights Issue Shares will, when issued and fully paid, rank equally in all respects with Existing Ordinary Shares, including the right to receive all dividends or other distributions made, paid or declared, if any, by reference to a record date after the date of their issue. The Rights Issue is an opportunity for Qualifying Shareholders to apply for Rights Issue Shares pro rata (excepting fractional entitlements) to their current holdings at the Issue Price in accordance with the terms of the Rights Issue.

Any Qualifying Shareholder who has sold or transferred all or part of his/her registered holding(s) of Ordinary Shares prior to the Record Date is advised to consult his or her stockbroker, bank or other agent through or to whom the sale or transfer was effected as soon as possible since the invitation to apply for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue may be a benefit which may be claimed from him/her by the purchasers.

1. The Rights Issue

Subject to the terms and conditions set out below in the Instruction Form, Qualifying Shareholders are being given the opportunity under the Rights Issue to subscribe for Rights Issue Shares at the Issue Price *pro rata* to their holdings as at the Record Date, payable in full on application.

Qualifying Shareholders have basic entitlements of:

2 Rights Issue Shares for every 1 Existing Ordinary Share registered in their name on the Record Date.

Rights Issue Shares not applied for under the Rights Issue will not be sold in the market for the benefit of those who do not apply under the Rights Issue. Any Rights Issue Shares which are not applied for by Qualifying Shareholders under the Rights Issue will not be issued by the Company.

The Rights Issue Shares will when issued and fully paid, rank in full for all dividends and other distributions declared, made or paid after the date of this document and otherwise *pari passu* in all respects with the Existing Ordinary Shares. The Rights Issue Shares are not being made available in whole or in part to the public.

In addition, Qualifying Shareholders will pay TPIM, as promoter of the Rights Issue, a Dealing in Charge of an amount equal to 1% of the total amount subscribed by them for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue.

2. Further terms of the Rights Issue

Definitive certificates in respect of Rights Issue Shares taken up are expected to be posted to those Qualifying Shareholders within 10 Business Days of allotment.

3. Procedure for application and payment

Qualifying Shareholders who do not want to apply for the Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue should take no action and should not complete or return the Instruction Form.

(a) General

Entitlements to Rights Issue Shares are rounded down to the nearest whole number. Qualifying Shareholders may apply for less than their entitlement should they wish to do so, but cannot apply for more than their entitlement.

The instructions and other terms set out in the Instruction Form are part of the terms of the Rights Issue in relation to Qualifying Shareholders. Any Rights Issue Shares issued under the Rights Issue will be on equivalent terms to those set out in any prevailing investor agreement with TPIM.

(b) Bona fide market claims

Applications to acquire Rights Issue Shares may only be made on the Instruction Form and may only be made by the Qualifying Shareholder named in it. Instruction Forms may not be sold, assigned, transferred or split. The Instruction Form is not a negotiable document and cannot be separately traded.

Any Qualifying Shareholder who has sold or transferred all or part of his/her registered holding(s) of Ordinary Shares prior to the Record Date is advised to consult his or her stockbroker, bank or other agent through or to whom the sale or transfer was effected as soon as possible since the invitation to apply for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue may be a benefit which may be claimed from him/her by the purchasers.

(c) Instruction procedures

Shareholders wishing to apply to acquire Rights Issue Shares (whether in respect of all or part of their Rights Issue Entitlement) should complete the Instruction Form in accordance with the instructions.

Completed Instruction Forms should be posted to TPAL or returned by hand (during normal business hours only) to Client Operations, Triple Point at 1 King William Street, London, United Kingdom, EC4N 7AF or scanned and sent by email to applications@triplepoint.co.uk, or completed through its Adviser Portal using DocuSign so as to be received by no later than 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025. The Company reserves the right to treat any instruction not strictly complying with the terms and conditions of instruction as nevertheless valid. Instructions, once made, will be irrevocable. Multiple applications will not be accepted. If an Instruction Form is being sent by first-class post in the UK, Qualifying Shareholders are recommended to allow at least four Business Days for delivery.

The Company may in its sole discretion, but shall not be obliged to, treat an Instruction Form as valid and binding on the person by whom or on whose behalf it is lodged, even if not completed in accordance with the relevant instructions or not accompanied by a valid power of attorney where required, or if it otherwise does not strictly comply with the terms and conditions of the Rights Issue. The Company further reserves the right (but shall not be obliged) to accept Instruction Forms received after 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025.

All documents and remittances sent by post by, to, from or on behalf of an applicant (or as the applicant may direct) will be sent entirely at the applicant's own risk.

Once you have sent your completed Instruction Form and payment to Triple Point you cannot withdraw your instruction or change the number of Rights Issue Shares applied for.

(d) Payments

All payments must be in pounds sterling and made by bank transfer to Triple Point RICA, in accordance with the details set out in the Instruction Form. Cheques must be drawn on a bank or building society or branch of a bank or building society in the United Kingdom or the British Isles which is either a settlement member of the Cheque and Credit Clearing Company Limited or the CHAPS Clearing Company Limited or which has arranged for its cheques to be cleared through the facilities provided by any of those companies or committees and must bear the appropriate sort code in the top right-hand corner and must be for the full amount payable on application. Third party cheques may not be accepted with the exception

of building society cheques where the building society or bank has confirmed the name of the account holder by stamping or endorsing the back of the cheque to confirm that the relevant Qualifying Shareholder has title to the underlying funds. The account name should be the same as that shown on the application. Post-dated cheques will not be accepted.

Cheques will be presented for payment upon receipt. The Company reserves the right to instruct TPAL to seek special clearance of cheques to allow the Company to obtain value for remittances at the earliest opportunity (and withhold definitive share certificates (or crediting to the relevant member account, as applicable) pending clearance thereof). No interest will be paid on payments made before they are due. It is a term of the Rights Issue that cheques shall be honoured on first presentation and the Company may elect to treat as invalid acceptances in respect of which cheques are not so honoured. All documents, cheques sent through the post will be sent at the risk of the sender. Royal Mail recommend using Special Delivery for sending cheques and retaining the tracking reference number.

(e) Incorrect Sums

If an Instruction Form encloses a payment for an incorrect sum, the Company reserves the right:

- (i) to reject the instruction in full and return the cheque or refund the payment to the Qualifying Shareholder in question without interest; or
- (ii) in the case that an insufficient sum is paid, to treat the instruction as a valid instruction for such lesser whole number of Rights Issue Shares as would be able to be applied for with that payment at the Issue Price, refunding any unutilised sum to the Shareholder in question without interest, save that any sums of less than £1 will be retained for the benefit of the Company; or
- (iii) in the case that an excess sum is paid, to treat the instruction as a valid instruction for all of the Rights Issue Shares referred to in the Instruction Form, refunding any unutilised sums to the Qualifying Shareholder in question without interest, save in respect of any sums of less than £5 which will be donated to a charity approved by the Board.

All monies received by TPAL in respect of Rights Issue Shares will be held in a non-interest bearing account.

(f) Effect of instruction

All documents and remittances sent by post by, to, from, or on behalf of or to an applicant (or as the applicant may direct) will be sent entirely at the applicant's own risk. By completing and delivering an Instruction Form the applicant:

- (i) confirms to the Company that in making the instruction the applicant is not relying on any information or representation in relation to the Company other than that contained in this document, and the applicant accordingly agrees that no person responsible solely or jointly for this document or any part thereof, or involved in the preparation thereof, shall have any liability for any such information or representation not so contained and further agrees that, having had the opportunity to read this document, he will be deemed to have had notice of all information in relation to the Company contained in this document (including information incorporated by reference);
- (ii) represents and warrants to the Company that the applicant is the Qualifying Shareholder originally entitled to the Rights Issue Entitlement;
- (iii) requests that the Rights Issue Shares to which the applicant will become entitled shall be issued to them on the terms set out in this document and the Instruction Form subject to the articles of association of the Company;
- (iv) represents and warrants to the Company that the applicant is not, nor are they applying on behalf of any person who is, in the United States or is a citizen or resident, or which is a corporation, partnership or other entity created or organised in or under any laws, of the United States of America, any jurisdiction in which the application for Rights Issue Shares is prevented by law ("Restricted Jurisdiction") and he is not applying with a view to re-offering, re-selling, transferring or delivering any of the Rights Issue Shares to a citizen or resident or a corporation, partnership or

other entity created or organised in or under any laws, of the United States of America or any Restricted Jurisdiction (except where proof satisfactory to the Company has been provided to the Company that application in the United States or to, or for the benefit of, a person who is able to accept the invitation by the Company free of any requirement which it (in its absolute discretion) regards as unduly burdensome), nor acting on behalf of any such person on a non-discretionary basis nor person(s) otherwise prevented by legal or regulatory restrictions from applying for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue;

- (v) represents and warrants to the Company that the applicant is not, and nor are they applying as nominee or agent for, a person who is or may be liable to notify and account for tax under the Stamp Duty Reserve Tax Regulations 1986 at any of the increased rates referred to the increased rates referred to in sections 67, 70, 93 or 96 (depositary receipts and clearance services) of the Finance Act 1986;
- (vi) confirms that in making the instruction the applicant is not relying and has not relied on the Company or any person affiliated with the Company in connection with any investigation of the accuracy of any information contained in this document or the applicant's investment decision; and
- (vii) warrants that the applicant is not currently targeted by any form of UK, US or EU sanctions or restrictive measures including blocking; asset freezes; restrictions on dealings, issuing, or trading in debt, equity, derivatives, or other securities; or any other prohibition or restriction on exercising any rights or performing any obligations the applicant may have in connection with any third party and that the applicant will inform the Company and TPIM immediately of any circumstances or changes whilst the applicant is an applicant for Rights Issue Shares or Shareholder that could impact this warranty.

All enquiries in connection with the procedure for instruction and completion of the Instruction Form should be addressed to TPAL, or returned by hand (during normal business hours only) to Client Operations, Triple Point, 1 King William Street, London, United Kingdom, EC4N 7AF, or you can contact them on 0207 201 8990. The helpline is open between 9 a.m. – 5:30 p.m., Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales. Please note that TPAL cannot provide any financial, legal or tax advice and calls may be recorded and monitored for security and training purposes.

(h) Proxy

Qualifying Shareholders who do not want to take up or apply for the Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue should take no action and should not complete or return the Instruction Form.

4. Money Laundering Regulations

4.1 Holders of Instruction Forms

To ensure compliance with the Money Laundering Regulations, TPAL may require, at its absolute discretion, verification of the identity of the person by whom or on whose behalf the Instruction Form is lodged with payment (which requirements are referred to below as the "verification of identity requirements"). If the Instruction Form is submitted by a UK regulated broker or intermediary acting as agent and which is itself subject to the Money Laundering Regulations, any verification of identity requirements are the responsibility of such broker or intermediary and not of TPAL. In such case, the lodging agent's stamp should be inserted on the Instruction Form.

The person lodging the Instruction Form with payment and in accordance with the other terms as described above (the "acceptor"), including any person who appears to TPAL to be acting on behalf of some other person, accepts the Rights Issue in respect of such number of Rights Issue Shares as is referred to therein (for the purposes of this paragraph 4 the "relevant Rights Issue Shares") shall thereby be deemed to agree to provide TPAL with such information and other evidence as they may require to satisfy the verification of identity requirements.

If TPAL determines that the verification of identity requirements apply to any acceptor or application, the relevant Rights Issue Shares (notwithstanding any other term of the Rights Issue) will not be issued to the relevant

acceptor unless and until the verification of identity requirements have been satisfied in respect of that acceptor or application. TPAL is entitled, in its absolute discretion, to determine whether the verification of identity requirements apply to any acceptor or instruction and whether such requirements have been satisfied, and neither TPAL nor the Company will be liable to any person for any loss or damage suffered or incurred (or alleged), directly or indirectly, as a result of the exercise of such discretion.

If the verification of identity requirements apply, failure to provide the necessary evidence of identity within a reasonable time may result in delays in the despatch of share certificates. If, within a reasonable time following a request for verification of identity, TPAL has not received evidence satisfactory to it as aforesaid, the Company may, in its absolute discretion, treat the relevant instruction as invalid, in which event the monies payable on acceptance of the Rights Issue will be returned (at the acceptor's risk) without interest to the account of the bank or building society on which the relevant cheque was drawn.

Submission of an Instruction Form with the appropriate remittance will constitute a warranty to the Company from the applicant that the Money Laundering Regulations will not be breached by application of such remittance.

Satisfaction of these verification requirements may be facilitated in the following ways:

- (a) if payment is made by cheque in sterling drawn on a branch in the United Kingdom of a bank or building society which bears a UK bank sort code number in the top right hand corner the following applies. Cheques should be made payable to Triple Point RICA, in respect of an instruction by a Qualifying Shareholder and crossed "A/C Payee Only". Third party cheques may not be accepted with the exception of building society cheques where the building society or bank has confirmed the name of the account holder by stamping or endorsing the cheque to such effect. The account name should be the same as that shown on the Instruction Form; or
- (b) if the Instruction Form is lodged with payment by an agent, the agent should provide with the Instruction Form written confirmation that it has that status and a written assurance that it has obtained and recorded evidence of the identity of the person for whom it acts and that it will on demand make such evidence available to TPAL. If the agent is not such an organisation, it should contact TPAL.

Applicants should ensure that he or she has with him or her evidence of identity bearing his or her photograph (for example, his or her passport) and separate evidence of his or her address.

If, within a reasonable period of time following a request for verification of identity, and in any case by no later than 2 p.m. on 13 June 2025, TPAL has not received evidence satisfactory to it as aforesaid, TPAL may, at its discretion, as agent of the Company, reject the relevant application, in which event the monies submitted in respect of that instruction will be returned without interest to the account at the payee bank from which such monies were originally debited (without prejudice to the rights of the Company to undertake proceedings to recover monies in respect of the loss suffered by it as a result of the failure to produce satisfactory evidence as aforesaid).

5 General

The distribution of this document and the making or acceptance of the Rights Issue to or by persons who have registered addresses in, or who are resident or ordinarily resident in, or citizens of, or which are corporations, partnerships or other entities created or organised under the laws of countries other than the United Kingdom or to persons who are nominees of or custodians, trustees or guardians for citizens, residents in or nationals of, countries other than the United Kingdom, may be affected by the laws or regulatory requirements of the relevant jurisdictions. It is the responsibility of those persons to consult their professional advisers as to whether they require any governmental or other consents or need to observe any applicable legal requirement or other formalities to enable them to apply for Rights Issue Shares under the Rights Issue.

The Company reserves the right to extend the period for which the Rights Issue is open to acceptances. Successful applicants for Rights Issue Shares will be advised by post.

The Rights Issue may be revoked at any time at the absolute discretion of the Company.

Before investing in the Rights Issue, Shareholders are urged to take their own independent financial advice.

6. Taxation

Shareholders who are in any doubt as to their tax position in relation to taking up their entitlements under the Rights Issue, or who are subject to tax in any jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom, should immediately consult a suitable professional adviser.

7. Further information

Your attention is drawn to the further information set out in this document.

8. Governing law and jurisdiction

The terms and conditions of the Rights Issue as set out in this document, the Instruction Form and any noncontractual obligation related thereto shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

The courts of England and Wales are to have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute which may arise out of or in connection with the Rights Issue, this document or the Instruction Form. By taking up Rights Issue Shares, in accordance with the instructions set out in this document and, where applicable, the Instruction Form, Qualifying Shareholders irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the courts of England and Wales and waive any objection to proceedings in any such court on the ground of venue or on the ground that proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum.

| Directors and Advisers | |
|-------------------------------|---|
| Directors (all non-executive) | Michael Jonathan Bayer Sean Brophy Christopher Johannes Fleming-Brown (independent) Michael Francis (independent) Toby Hilton Furnivall |
| | all of: |
| | 1 King William Street London EC4N 7AF |
| Registered Office | 1 King William Street London EC4N 7AF |
| Corporate Services Providers | Triple Point Investment Management LLP and Triple Point Credit Management LLP, both of 1 King William Street London EC4N 7AF |
| Solicitors to the Company | Howard Kennedy LLP 1 London Bridge London SE1 9BG |
| Receiving Agent | Triple Point Administration LLP 1 King William Street London EC4N 7AF |
| Auditors | Saffery Champness LLP 71 Queen Victoria Street London EC4V 4BE |